
December 1, 2015 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor   

Council Members Adams, Edinger, Evans, Gookin, McEvers, Miller



CONSENT CALENDAR 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO, 

HELD AT THE LIBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM 
 

November 17, 2015 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a regular session of said Council at 
the Coeur d’Alene City Library Community Room November 17, 2015 at 6:00 p.m., there being 
present upon roll call the following members: 
 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
  
Loren Ron Edinger  ) Members of Council Present 
Dan Gookin    )   
Kiki Miller        )    
Steve Adams   ) 
Woody McEvers  ) 
Amy Evans        )   
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Widmyer. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember Adams led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
ACCESSIBLITY DURING THE WINTER PRESENTATION:   Virgil Edwards with 
Disability Action Center Northwest explained the importance of proper snow removal during the 
winter.  He noted that people often do not intend to move snow covering the accessible parking 
stalls, but they do and this is a violation of the Americans with Disability Act.  He reminded 
citizens that everyone benefits from accessible routes.  Angela MacDonald, Independent Living 
Specialist with Disability Action Center, explained that accessible routes being clear is a safety 
issue for all including those with small children and the elderly.   She encouraged citizens to 
remove snow from the sidewalk in front of their homes to allow for accessible routes of travel 
and to call violations into the City’s Code Enforcement Officer, Shawn Youngman, 769-2390.   
Local citizen Don Waddell stated that lack of snow removal is a safety issue and that those with 
mobility disabilities cannot use the businesses that do not clear the snow appropriately.  If snow 
is placed in the accessible stalls at the beginning of the winter is easily turns to ice and remains 
there the rest of the season.  The code requires property owners to remove the snow and they can 
be charged with a misdemeanor, but enforcement is not there yet.  Mayor Widmyer reiterated 
that this is a good reminder for all to keep their sidewalks clear and expressed appreciation to the 
group for their message.   
 
PROCLAMATION: DIABETES AWARENESS WEEK NOVEMBER 16, 2015:  Mayor 
Widmyer proclaimed the week of November 16-22, 2015 as Diabetes Awareness Week.  Hailie 
Velasco accepted the proclamation and explained that she is 9-years old and has Type 1 
Diabetes.  Over the past year, she has gone through 4,345 finger pokes, 1,200 injections, and 24 
pump insertions.  She noted that at the beginning of each meal she must analyze how much 
insulin she needs.  Due to her Mom’s knowledge, she noticed the symptoms before it got too 



 
 

bad.  She is hoping to raise money to find a cure.  The Mayor thanked her for her information 
and her bravery. 
 
TUBBS HILL FIRE PREVENTION PRESENTATION:  Deputy Fire Chief Glenn Lauper 
explained the status of the Tubbs Hill access trail and noted that the City completed the plans to 
finish the last 1,100-foot section of fire road for connectivity on Tubbs Hill.  This will aid in 
keeping the fires small and allow for quick response times.  Parks Department staff has presented 
this idea to the Natural Open Space Committee and Tubbs Hill Foundation several times over the 
years.  The fire road was included in the Natural Open Space Master Plan.  Last September, the 
Tubbs Hill Foundation was given notice of the City’s intent to build the road and the Foundation 
has endorsed the engineered plan for the road.  Parks Superintendent Bill Greenwood presented a 
map of the access road area.  He noted that the roadway would pass by the water tanks and 
connect into the existing roadway.   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked if the water from the water tank is used to fight fires.  Deputy 
Lauper stated that there are hydrants in the vicinity that would be used, not a direct connection to 
the tank.  Mr. Greenwood explained that there is an opportunity to use a flat area near the tank to 
refuel trucks with water.  Deputy Lauper stated that under the right circumstances, the hill could 
burn within two hours and this road would allow them to get there and keep the fires small.  
Councilmember Gookin noted that this project will begin soon and would like the message out to 
the public, so they understand what is occurring.   He also asked how many trees have to be 
removed.  Mr. Greenwood explained that they hope it will be less than twelve that are 6 inches or 
greater, but cautioned that until they get into construction they do not know for sure.  
Councilmember Gookin asked for an explanation as to why the road is needed if the City is 
purchasing a fireboat.  Deputy Lauper explained that the fireboat will be able to cover the hill 
from the water up to 200 feet and that the road will provide coverage over 200 feet above the 
road.  Councilmember Miller asked if this road would help with other public safety aspects of the 
hill such as responding to medical needs.  Mr. Greenwood confirmed that it would be a benefit if 
someone was injured for emergency response access and law-enforcement related issues.  
Councilmember Edinger commended Deputy Lauper and Mr. Greenwood for getting this 
through the Tubbs Hill Foundation, as they are very protective of the hill.    
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Motion by McEvers, second by Gookin, to approve the consent 
calendar.  
1. Approval of Council Minutes for November 3, 2015. 
2. Approval of Bills as Submitted. 
3. Setting of General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for November 23, 2015 

at 12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m. respectively. 
4. Approval of Beer/Wine License transfer from Chinese Gardens to China Inn; Wen Luo, Qin 

Li at 310 N. 4th Street. 
5. Approval of Beer/Wine License to Paint CDA, LLC at 728 N. 4th Street (New). 
6. Cemetery Lot Repurchase from Edward & Jean Holt; Lots 068 and 078, Block A, Riverview 

Section; Forest Cemetery.  
7. Resolution No. 15-063 -  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, 

KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED 
CONTRACTS AND OTHER ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE 

2  Council Minutes November 17, 2015                 Page               



 
 

INCLUDING APPROVING A PERMIT AGREEMENT WITH ROW ADVENTURES FOR 
ACCESS TO INDEPENDENCE POINT FOR LAUNCHING KAYAKS FOR GUIDED 
TOURS; APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH BROOKS SEAPLANE SERVICE, 
INC. FOR MOORAGE SPACE ON COMMERCIAL DOCK BAY 5.    

8. Approval of Beer/Wine License transfer from Andiamo of CDA to ASLK, LLC; 1735 West 
Kathleen Avenue (Fairway Gas & Go)   

 
ROLL CALL:  Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye. 
Motion Carried. 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
Mayor Widmyer asked for the appointment of Bruce Hathaway to the CDATV Committee.  
 
MOTION:  Motion by Edinger, seconded by McEvers to approve the appointment of Bruce 
Hathaway to the CDATV Committee. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Woody explained that Bruce used to be the camera operator for the cable channel 
long before it was CDATV and was one of the founding members of the CDATV Committee.   
 
Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE 2015 SNOW PLAN – Due to a windstorm and emergency response 
needed by the Street Department, this item was continued to the next City Council meeting.   

 
ACCEPTANCE OF CANVASSED ELECTION RESULTS 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Miller to accept the canvassed election results as 
presented by Kootenai County and that the results be reflected in the minutes of this meeting.  
Motion carried. 
 

3  Council Minutes November 17, 2015                             Page                        



 
 

 
 

4  Council Minutes November 17, 2015                 Page               



 
 

V-15-4– VACATION OF A TEMPORARY BICYCLE TRAIL EASEMENT IN THE 
RIVERSTONE PLAT.   
 
STAFF REPORT:  Engineering Project Manager Dennis Grant explained that applicant JHM 
Investments, LLC. requested the vacation of a temporary easement for a bicycle/pedestrian path.   
The Centennial Trail currently exists in its final location, so the temporary easement that 
encumbers two lots is no longer needed.  Approving this vacation would allow the lots to be sold 
without the easement encumbrance.  Mr. Grant noted that 11 mailings were sent out, with three 
responses in support of the request being received.   
 
Mayor Widmyer called for public comments with none being received.   
 
MOTION:   Motion by Evans, seconded by Gookin to approve Vacation of a temporary bicycle 
trail easement in the Riverstone Plat.     
 
ROLL CALL:  McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Miller Aye.  
Motion Carried.      
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15- 064 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO ESTABLISHING CERTAIN CITY FEES WITHIN THE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 
 
STAFF REPORT: Renata McLeod noted that the Council approved the outside employment of 
Police Officers at the November 3, 2015 meeting.  The fee associated with this service would 
allow it to be a cost-neutral program to the city.   Additionally, the department has been 
providing VIN inspection services and has never set a fee for that service.  She noted that VIN 
inspection fees are charged at the same rate throughout the County.  Fees proposed are as 
follows:  
VIN inspection fee:  $5.00 
Fee for service of Police Officers for security and/or traffic control:  

• Patrol Officer:  $30.75 (2-hour minimum) 
• Sergeants: $43.05 (2-hour minimum) 
• Lieutenants:  $55.35 (2-hour minimum) 
• Processing fee per request:   $20.00 
• Vehicle Use:  $20.00/4 hours (4-hour minimum per vehicle) 

 
Mayor Widmyer called for public comments with none being received.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Edinger, seconded by Adams to approve Resolution No. 15-064 
approving fees for the Police Department. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Gookin expressed concern that the vehicle use fee was set low, 
especially if the Police were escorting someone around.  Ms. McLeod explained that the most 
likely use of the program would be security at a building wherein the Officer would use the 

5  Council Minutes November 17, 2015                             Page                        



 
 

vehicle to travel from the station to the location with the car remaining parked on site during the 
contract period.  Councilmember McEvers asked for clarification regarding the police officer 
rate.  Ms. McLeod explained that the rate is based on a median rate for officers, including 
benefits, and the assignment of an Officer, Sergeant, or Lieutenant will be based on who is 
available, not necessarily, what the applicant’s desires are.  Councilmember Miller asked if a 
request is made, is it mandated that the City provide the service.  Ms. McLeod explained that it 
would be in the Police Chief’s purview as to whether or not they have the staffing to provide the 
service.   
 
ROLL CALL:  Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye.  
Motion carried. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Adams, that there being no other 
business this meeting be adjourned.  Motion Carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:39 p.m. 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
ATTEST:     Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk  

6  Council Minutes November 17, 2015                 Page               



 
 
 
DATE:  NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 
   TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
   RE:  SETTING OF PUBLIC HEARING DATE: DECEMBER 15, 2015 
 
 
Mayor Widmyer, 
 
The Planning Department has forwarded the following item to the City Council for scheduling of a public 
hearing.  In keeping with state law and Council policy, the Council will set the date of the public hearing upon 
receipt of recommendation. 
 
 
 
ITEM NO. REQUEST   COMMISSION ACTION COMMENT 
    
A-4-15  Zoning in Conjunction with   Approve    Legislative 
  Annexation from County               
  Agricultural Suburban/Commercial  
  to City R-8 and C-17 
  Applicant: Kerr Properties, LLC 
  Location:  A +/- 34 acre property located a the 
  Southwest and Southeast corners of Prairie Avenue 
  and Ramsey Road. 
 
In order to satisfy the mandatory 15-day notice requirement, the next recommended hearing date will be  
DECEMBER 15. 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-065 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER 
ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVING A REQUEST 
FOR DESTRUCTION OF TEMPORARY RECORDS FOR ADMINISTRATION AND 
MAYOR’S OFFICE AND APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH LONGWELL /TRAPP ARCHITECTS FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR FIRE 
STATION NO. 4. 
         

WHEREAS, it has been recommended that the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into the 
contract(s), agreement(s) or other actions listed below pursuant to the terms and conditions set 
forth in the contract(s), agreement(s) and other action(s) documents attached hereto as Exhibits 
“A through C” and by reference made a part hereof as summarized as follows: 

 
A) Approving a request for Destruction of Temporary Records for Administration 

and Mayor’s Office; 
 
B) Approving a Professional Services Agreement with Longwell /Trapp Architects 

for Architectural Services for Fire Station No. 4; 
 

AND; 
 
WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 

citizens thereof to enter into such agreements or other actions; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the 
City enter into agreements or other actions for the subject matter, as set forth in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Exhibits "A through C" and incorporated herein by reference with the 
provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify 
said agreements or other actions so long as the substantive provisions of the agreements or other 
actions remain intact. 
 

Resolution No. 15-065 1 | P a g e  
   



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreements or other actions on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 1st day of December, 2015.   
 
 
 
                                        
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
      
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 
     Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 

Resolution No. 15-065 2 | P a g e  
   



MEMORANDUM  
 

 
 
DATE:   December 1, 2015 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:  RENATA MCLEOD, Municipal Services Director 
 
RE:   Request for Destruction of Records 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
DECISION POINT:  
Would the City Council approve the destruction of certain public records? 
 
HISTORY: 
The mayor has requested that his office convert to “paperless” as much as possible to 
conserve paper and space.  Correspondence, files created within the last 24 months, and 
files of a historical nature were scanned into the city’s Pigeonhole Document 
Management program.  Minutes from various committees were also scanned and the 
original hard copies were retained.  Pursuant to the Records Retention Manual adopted by 
the City Council in 2006, the attached list of remaining files is being presented to the 
Council for authorization for destruction of such records without scanning.  It has been 
determined that the files are more than 24 months old and have no historical value.   Files 
denoted by initials are citizen interaction files which were maintained by the previous 
mayor. 
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:  Because of the lack of storage space, records are 
routinely reviewed to determine if the necessity of maintaining the record is warranted.  
Because the attached list of records has exceeded the time required to maintain them and 
their useful life has been exhausted, it is necessary to purge these files in order to 
maintain storage space for future records. 
 
DECISION POINT:  To authorize staff to proceed with the destruction of records as 
listed pursuant to I.C. Title 74. 
 

Resolution No. 15-065   Page  1 of 6 E X H I B I T  “ A ”  



File Name Type of Record Retention Schedule Most Recent  
Doc Date 

05 Crown Communities Award Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2005 
08/05 Yes! Symposium Youth Engagement Seminar Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2005 
A.S.   Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 6/2007 
ADA Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2005 
AIC 2007 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 2007 
AIC City Achievement Awards – 2004 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2004 
AIC City Achievement Awards – 2010 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2010 
AIC City Achievement Awards – 2011 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 
AIC City Achievement Awards – COPS Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 
AIC City Achievement Awards – Parks Day 
Celebration 

Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 

AIC City Achievement Awards – Sidewalks Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 
AIC City Achievement Awards – Technical Rescue 
Team 

Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 

AIC City Achievement Awards 2012 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2011 
AIC Day at the Capitol – Jan 26, 2012 Exec Asst Work 

Product 
Temporary 24 Mos. 1/2012 

AIC Day at the Capitol – Jan 27, 2011 Exec Asst Work 
Product 

Temporary 24 Mos. 1/2011 

AIC Nominations – Future Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 
Alley Suspension – Garbage Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2011 
American Planning Association Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2011 
Animal Control Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2012 
Anti-Discrimination Ordinance Citizen Letters Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2013 
Aquifer Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2007 
Area of City Impact – D. Yadon Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/2008 
Armstrong Park Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2011 
Associations/CDA Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2011 
Avista Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2006 
B.M.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2005 
B/C/C Appointments Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2004 
BCC Applications (copies) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2012 
Bicycle Friendly Community Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2007 
Blackwell Island Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2005 
Bldg Permit Review Process Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/1998 
BLM Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2012 
Bluepastry@gmail.com Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2009 
Breed Banning Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2011 
Breed Banning Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2007 
C.R.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2011 
C.S.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 1/2013 
C.S.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2002 
C.T.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2012 
Call Center Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2004 
Census #2010 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2011 
CG – Letter Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2004 
Chain of Command Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2006 
Christian Community Coalition Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2010 

Resolution No. 15-065   Page  2 of 6 E X H I B I T  “ A ”  



File Name Type of Record Retention Schedule Most Recent  
Doc Date 

City Logo (Use of) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2011 
City of Sandpoint Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2000 
Citylink Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2012 
Civil Disturbance/Crowd Control Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/1998 
Code Enforcement Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2012 
Complete Streets Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2009 
Condolence Letters Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo.  7/2011 
Council 2012 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2012 
Coyotes 2010 (March) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2010 
D.B.   Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 11/2011 
D.B.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2011 
D.D.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 8/2009 
D.H.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 6/2012 
D.J.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2011 
Dalton Gardens Sewer Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2010 
Deer Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2007 
Deer Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2008 
Design Review Committee Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 3/2006 
Downtown 2010 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 2/2010 
Downtown Complaints Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 9/2011 
E.R.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2010 
Electrification – Federal Mayor’s Files 

Mayor’s Files 
Temporary 24 Mos. 9/2010 

Enough is Enough Photo Album (Family Night 
3/14/99) 

Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 3/1999 

EPA Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 3/2007 
Evergreen Drive Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 9/2010 
F.D. Ltr for 5/15 Mtg with Wendy G. Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 4/2007 
F.O.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2012 
F.S.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2008 
FD  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 1/2003 
Fernan Open Space Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2012 
FERW (copy of letter) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/1997 
Fire Department Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2005 
Flag Distribution – 4th Parade Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2011 
Franchise Fees Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2009 
Fund Conversion Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2004 
G.B.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2006 
Government Way Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2005 
Government Way/Ribbon Cutting Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2005 
Govt West – Article Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2002 
Graffiti Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2007 
Green River Ordinance Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2007 
H.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/2012 
H.D.   Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 10/2012 
H.D. (E.T.)  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 6/2012 
H.K.   Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2010 
H.M. Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 2/5/2013 

Resolution No. 15-065   Page  3 of 6 E X H I B I T  “ A ”  



File Name Type of Record Retention Schedule Most Recent  
Doc Date 

H.S.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 3/2011 
H.T.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 10/19/2011 
Hagadone Letters Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 5/30/2007 
Halpern, Red (Park Name) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 11/2009 
Higher Ed Corridor Partners Meeting 9/26/12 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 9/2012 
Higher Education Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 4/2011 
HJR 2 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 8/2006 
HUD Materials on the Homeless Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2004 
Hydroplanes Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2012 
ID Commerce & Labor Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2005 
ID Independent Intergovernmental Authority Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2011 
Idaho Housing & Finance Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2005 
Idaho Magazine Articles Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2004 
Info Packet – City Officials Day at the Capitol 
1/31/2008 

Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 1/2008 

Intern Info Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2006 
J.W.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2011 
Jobs Plus, Inc. Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2007 
Judging Packet for 2001 Women of Distinction 
Award 

Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo.  8/2001 

K.J.   Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2004 
K.S.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2010 
KATS – Kootenai Area Transportation System Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2011 
KC All Hazard Mitigation Plan Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2012 
KCTTFHR – Speeches Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2010 
Kendall yards Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2007 
KMPO Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2006 
Kootenai Perspectives Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2004 
Kroc Meetings Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2011 
L.J.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2005 
L.R. – Sidewalks  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 1/2008 
L.S.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2012 
Labor Relations Lunch ‘99 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/1999 
Library Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2012 
M.D.T.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2011 
M.S.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2012 
MAC Leadership Council Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/2009 
Marketing 2009 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2011 
Masker Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 1/2001 
Mayor’s Arts Awards Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 10/2000 
Mayor’s Transition Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 11/2001 
Mayor’s Transition & Woody’s Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 11/2001 
McG  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2011 
Meeting Worksheets (Administrator) Exec Asst Work 

Product 
Temporary 24 Mos. 6/2011 – 

8/2013 
Meeting Worksheets (Mayor) Exec Asst Work 

Product 
Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2012 – 

7/2013 
Misc. Photographs (Envelope titled Urban Renewal Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 1997 

Resolution No. 15-065   Page  4 of 6 E X H I B I T  “ A ”  



File Name Type of Record Retention Schedule Most Recent  
Doc Date 

1997) 
Name Tags Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2012 
NI Advisory Group Mtg (U of I) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2012 
NIMC (working file) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mos. 2/2012 
Open Mtg Laws Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2001 
P.O.S.T. Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2011 
Parking Complaints, etc. Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2004 
Parks Dept. Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2002 
PC Meetings Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2012 
Police Dept. Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2005 
Post Office (U.S. Postal) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/1998 
Public Information Enhancement Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 1/2010 
Public Records Law Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2011 
Public Relations Notes Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2000 
Quality of Life Survey Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 1/2012 
R.E. & Development in the Northern Rockies Conf 
10/5/06 

Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2006 

R.N.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2011 
R.S.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2012 
R.T.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2012 
R.W.  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2012 
Radio –Council Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2011 
Radio Notes Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2012 
Railroad Substation Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2004 
Rankings Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 
Receipts Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/2009 
Records Request 2/09 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2008 
Recreation Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2003 
Risk Reduction Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 
Riverstone Notes Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2000 
Rosenberry Drive Information Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2011 
S.D.   Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2010 
S.W.W./M.G. Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2010 
Sanders Beach Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2007 
Service Animals Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/2012 
Service Groups Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2004 
Sewer Intercept Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2006 
Simpson, Rep. Mike Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/1999 
Single Audit Act Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2012 
S.E.  (Vision Statement) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/2011 
Snow Plan (most recent) Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2011 
Spokane River Property Owners Association Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/1998 
SR2 Schools October 8th Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2008 
St. Vincent de Paul Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 6/2005 
Stimson, Govern, U of I Mtg 9/16/02 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2002 
Stormwater 2012/Fees Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2012 
Stormwater Publicity Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/2012 
Strategic Research Associate Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 1/2007 

Resolution No. 15-065   Page  5 of 6 E X H I B I T  “ A ”  



File Name Type of Record Retention Schedule Most Recent  
Doc Date 

Streets Department Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 4/2005 
Student Rep Reception RSVP 2012 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2012 
Sustainability Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/2008 
Tatoo Safety Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2012 
Time Warner Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 12/2006 
Travel Itineraries Exec Asst Work 

Product 
Temporary 24 Mos. 2010, 3/2011 

– 12/2012 
University of Idaho – NI Advisory Group Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2012 
US Dept of Ed/Phone # Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 2/2011 
Utilities – Request for Service Outside City Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/1997 
Warranties Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 5/1999 
Wastewater Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 7/2005 
Water/Wastewater Expenditures Trends 2010 Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2010 
Waterfront – Public Access Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/2009 
Wedding Chapel Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 8/1998 
Wedding/Marriage Ceremony Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 9/2005 
Weird Letters Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 3/2007 
Youth Alliance Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 11/1998 
Z  Mayor’s Files Temporary 24 Mo. 10/2011 
 

Resolution No. 15-065   Page  6 of 6 E X H I B I T  “ A ”  



City of Coeur d'Alene
FIRE DEPARTMENT

"City of Excellence"

Staff Report

Date: 11-13-15

From: Jim Washko, Deputy Chief

Re: Architect Agreement Fire Station 4

DECISION POINT: To accept the Architectural agreement with Longwell/Trapp
Architects to re-vamp the Fire Station 3 Building plans to meet the new code revisions to be

used to build Fire Station 4

HISTORY: In 2000/200I Longwell Architects went through the RFP process to become the
architectural firm to provide blueprints and specifications for Fire Station 3 on l5rh street
in Coeur d'Alene, with the idea that the plans would be used for other fire stations for the
fire department future. I met with the legal department to get approval for the process of
revising the existing plans to meet our goal of building Station 4. According to Idaho
Statutes Title61-2320 PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL,CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS AND PROFESSIONAL LAND
STIRVEYORS (2)...contracts previousll' as'arded for an associated or phased project...,
Legal stated that we could forgo going through the RIP process to design a New Concept
Fire Station because this is an associated project.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: The financial savings could be as high as $30,000-540,000 by
using Longwell to re-vamp our plans to fit our need. The cost proposed includes the need to
meet all applicable building codes at this date and time, *'hich there have been three (3)

code updates.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: Longu,ell Architects has done several projects for us in the
past beyond Fire Station 3, they did our training facilig', Administration building, remodel
to Fire Station 1 and u,e have been very pleased u'ith their work. As stated above Station 3
plans were drawn with a plan of using them in the future for other stations

DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: Our recommendation is to move forrvard
u'ith using Longn,elVTrapp Architects to re-r'amp our existing plans to build Fire Station 4
for the cost stated in their contract for "Total fixed fee for Construction Documents',.



Statutes http://www. legislanre. idaho. gov/idstat/Tine67 lT 6'l C[{23SECT 67 -2...

Idaho Statutes

TITIE 67
STATE GOVERNMENT AND STATE AFFAIRS

C}IAPTER 2 3
MISCELIANEOUS PROVISIONS

6']-2320. PROEESSIONAI SERVICE CONTRACTS W]TH DESIGN PROFESSIONAIS,
CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS AND PROFESSIONAI LAND SURVEYORS. (1) Notwithstanding
any other provision of l-aw to the contrary, it shall be the policy of this
state that aI1 public agencies and political subdivisions of the state of
Idaho and their agents shall make selections for professj-onal engineering,
architectural, Iandscape architecture, construction management and
professional land surveying services, incJ-uding services by persons licensed
pursuant to chapters 3, f2, 30 and 45, title 54, Idaho Code, on the basis of
gualifications and demonstrated competence and shall negotiate contracts or
agreements for such services on the basis of demonstrated competence and
qualifications for the tlpe of services required at fair and reasonable
prices.

(2) In carrying out this policy, public agencies and political
subdivisions of the state shafl use the following minimum guidelines in
securing contracts for engineering, architectural, -Landscape architecture,
constructj-on management and land surveying services on projects for which
the professional service fee is anticj-pated to ex e tota
twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) , excluding professional-
conEracts prevrous -[v awar or an associated or

ture is otherwise e t from the b rocess prov aw:
(a) Encourage persons or firms engag SCIVICCS cited
to submit statements of gualifications and performance data;
(b) Establish and make avail-able to the public the criteria and
procedures used for the sel-ection of qualified persons or fj-rms to
perform such services;
(c) SeIect the persons or firrns whom the public agency or political
subdivision determines to be best qualified to provide the reguired
services, ranked in order of preference, pursuant to the public agency
or political subdivision's established criteria and procedures;
(d) Negotiate with the highest ranked person or firm for a contract or
agreement to perform such services at a price determined by the pubtic
agency or political subdivision to be reasonable and fair to the public
after considering the estimated vafue, the scope, the complexity and
the nature of the services;
(e) When unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract or agreement,
formally terminate negotiations and undertake negotiations with thenext highest ranked person or firm, fofrowing the procedure prescribed
in subsection (2) (d) of this section;
(f) when unabr-e to negotiate a satisfactory contract or agreement withany of the selected persons or firms, continue with the ielection andnegotiation process provided in this section until a contract oragreement is reached;

I of 2
I I /18/2015 3: l0 PM



http://www.legislature.idaho. gov/idstar/Title67/T67cH23 sEcT67-2...

(9) When public agencies or political subdivisj-ons soJ-icit proposals
for engineering, architectural-, landscape archj-tecture, construction
management or land surveying services for which the professj-onal
service fee is anticipated to exceed the total sum of twenty-five
thousand dollars (525,000), they shall publj.sh public notice in the
same manner as required for bidding of public works construction
proj ects .
(h) fn fulfilling the requj-rements of subsectj-ons (2) (a) through
{2) (g) of this section, a publj-c agency or politicaL subdivision may
limit its selection from a list of three (3) persons or firms selected
and preapproved for consideration by the public agency or political.
subdivision. In establishing a preapproved list a public agency or
political subdivision shall publish notice as set forth in subsection
(2) (S) of this section. when selecting from such list, no notice shall
be required.
(i) In fulfilling the requirements of subsections (2) la) through
(2) (g) of this section, a pubLic agency or political subdivision may
request information concerning a personrs or firm's rates, overhead and
multip.Liers, if any, however such information shaLl not be used by the
public agency or political subdivision for the purpose of ranking in
order of preference as required in subsection (2) (c) of this section.
(3) In securing contracts for engineering, architectural, landscape

architecture, construction management or Iand surveying services on projects
for which the professiona.I service fee is anticipated to be less than the
total sum of twenty-five thousand dollars (S25,000), the public agency or
political subdivision may use the guidefines set forth in paragraphs (a)
through (S) of subsection 12\ of this section or establish its own
guidelines for selection based on demonstrated competence and qualifications
to perform the type of services reguired, foll-owed by negotiation of the fee
at a price determined by the public agency or political- subdivision to be
fair and reasonable after considering the estimated va1ue, the scope, the
complexity and the nature of services.

(4) when a public agency or polj-tical subdivision of the state has
previousl-y awarded a professionaL services contract to a person or firm for
an associated or phased project the public agency or political subdivision
may, at its discretion, negotiate an extended or new professional services
contract with that person or firm.

(5) (a) For the purposes of this section, "public agencyt' shall mean
the state of Idaho and any departments, commissions, boards,
authorities, bureaus, universities, coll-eges, educational institutions
or other state agencies which have been created by or pursuant to
statute other than courts and their agencies and divisions, and the
judicial council and the district magistrate's commission;
(b) For Lhe purposes of this section, "poJ-itical subdivision" shall

mean a county, city, airport, airport district, school district, hea.Ith
district, road dj.strict, cemetery district, community college district,
hospital district, irrigation district, sewer district, fire protection
district, or any other district or municipality of any nature
whatsoever having the power to .Levy taxes or assessment, organized
under any genera.l- or special 1aw of this state. The entmeration ofcertain districts herein shal-1 not be construed to excrude otherdistrj-cts or municipalities from this definition.

History:
167-2320, added 1984, ch. 188, sec. 1, p. 438; am. 1998, ch. 410, sec.4, p. 1213 . l

2 of 2
I l/18/2015 3: l0 PM



*AIA Document B1o4- - zooT

Skndard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Archihctfor a Project of Limited
Scope

AGREEiIENT made as ofthe Twenty-Eighth day ofSeptember in the year Two Thousand
and Fifteen
(ln uords. indicate day, monlh and tear.t

BETWEEN the Archite€1's client identified as the Owner:
(Name, legal slatus, addrcss and olher informdtion)

City of Coeur d'Alore
710 Mullan Avenue
Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83E l4

and the Architcct:
(Name, legal slatus, addtess und olher infor,nqlion)

Longwell + Trapp Architects
E382 N Wayne Drive, Suite 204
Hayden, ldaho t3835

for the following hoject:
(Name, locaion atd delailed description)

New Fire Station No. 4 to be located on Atlas Road near rhe intersection on Hanley
Street. Proposed Fire Station will be approximately 7,000 SF. Refer to attached lener
with revised daied June 15. 2015 for additional detail.

The Owner and Ardritect agree as follows.

ADDITIOiS AND DELETIO S:
The aulhor of this d@umenl has
added information needod ,or ils
completion. The aulhor may also
have revised lhe text ot the original
AIA slandard form An Addilions and
D€letbn6 Report lhat notes added
rrformation as well as revisions to
the standard form lexl is available
trofi lhe aulhor and should be
reviewed A verlical line in the left
margin of this document indicales
where the author has added
necessary infoamation and where
lhe aulhor has added lo or deleted
from the originalAlA text

This documenl has importanl legal

consequencos Consultation with an
atlomey is encouraged wilh respecl
to ils completion or moditicalion

lnlt.

docum€nt wa! prcduced by AIA roalwarG et ,t3:

Uaar t{otaa:
(132876E520)

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORiIATION

2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES

4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

5 OWNER'S RESFOI{SIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CI.AIiIS AND DISPTITES

9 TER INATIOIiI OR SUSPENSION

10 ISCELLAI{EOUS PROVISIONS

11 COTIPENSATION

12 SPECIAL TERTIS AND CONDITIONS

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEITIENT

ARTICLE I IilMAL INFORTIATION

$ 1,1 This Agreement is bssed on the lnitial Information set forth b€low:
(State belov, delails olthe Projecl's sile and program, Oener's contractors and consultqnts, Archilect's consulldnts,
Owner's budgel for lhe Cost of the lYorN and other idormdtion relevant to lhe Project )

I Refer to attached letter dated reyiscd June 15,2015

$ 1.2 The Owner and Architecl may rely on the Inirial Information. Both parties, however, recognize thal such
informalion may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architecl shall appropriately adjust the
schedule, the Architect's services and ihe Architect's compensation.

ARTICLE2 ARCHITECT'SRESPONSIBILITIES
The Architect shall provide the professional services set forth in this Ag'eement consistent with the professional
skill and care ordinarily provided by architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar
circumslances. The Architect shall perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill
and care and thc ordaly progress ofthe Project.

ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES

$ 3.1 The Architect's Basic Servic€s consist ofthose described in Article 3 and include usual and customary
structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services.

$ 3'1.1 The Arclritect shall be entitled ro rely on (l) the accuracy and completeness ofrhe information fumished by
the Owner and (2) the Owner's approvals. The Architect shall provide prompt Britten notice to the Own€r ifthe
Arciitect b€comes aware ofany error, omission or inconsistency in such services or information.

$ 3.'l'2 As soon as practicable after the date ofthis Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Ourer's approval a
schedule for the performance ofthe Archilect's services. Once approved by the Owner, time limits established by
the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded by the Architect or Owner. With the Owner's

lniL Thi3

, 
"nt'ot 2

(132876E620)

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



approval, the Arciitect shall adjust the sdredule, ifnecrssary, as the hoject procecds until the commencement of
con struction.

$ 3,1.3 The Architect shall assis the Owner in connectim with the Owner's responsibility for filing documents
required for the approval of govemmatal authorities having jurisdiction over the Projecl.

g 3.2 DESTGN PHASE SERVTCES

$ 3.2.1 The Architea shall review the progarn and oth€r information furnished by the Owner, and shall design the
proj€ct to comply with all laws, codes, regulations and other requirernents ofgovernmental entities who have
jurisdiction oYer the Project.

$ 3.2.2 The Ardtitect strall discuss with the Own€f, the Owner's program, schedule, budget for the Cost ofthe Work,
Projed site, and alternative approaches to d€sign and constsuction ofthe Project, including the feasibility of
incorporating environmentally responsible design approadres. The Architect dlall rcach an und€rstanding with the
Owner rega'ding the Project requirements.

! 3.2.3 The Ardritecl slrall consider the relative value ofalternative mat€rials, building systems and e4uipm€nt,
togethcr with othet considerations based on program and aesthetics in developing a design for the Project that is
consistent with the Owner's sdredule and budget for the Cost ofthe Work.

$ 3.2.t1 Based on $e Project requirements, the Architeo shall prepare Design Documents for the Owner's approval
mnsisting ofdrawings and dher documents appropriate for the hoject and the Ardritect shall prepare and submit to
the Owner a preliminary estimale of the Cost of the Work

$ 3.25 The Ardritecr $all subrnit to the Ownq an estimate ofthe Cost ofthe Work prepared in accordance wirh
Sectim 6.3.

$ 3.2.6 The Ardritecl shall submit the Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner's approval.

s 3.3 COI{SIRUCION DOCUTEnTS PHASE SERVTCES

$ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner's approval ofthe Design Documents, the Architect shall prepare for the Ovmer's
sPpoval ConSucticn Deuments consisting of Drawings and Specifications setting forth in detail the requiremants
for the constsuc-tio ofthe Work. The Ovmer and Architecl acknowledge that in order to coostruct the Work the
Contracttr will povide additional informatian, including Shop Drawings, Product Dat4 Samples and dh€r similar
subrnittals, $ticl ore Architect shall review in accordancr with Section 3.4.4.

S 3,3.2 The fudlitect shall incfiporale into the Construction Documents the design requirem€nts of govomm€ntal
authcities having jurisdicticr over the hoject.

$ 3,3.3 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost ofthe Work.

$ 3.3.4 The Architect strall suhnit the Constsuctim Documents to the Owner, advise the Own€r ofany adjustments
to the estimate ofthe Cost ofthe Worlf take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Ov,,ner's
approval.

$ 3.3.5 The Ardtitecr, following the Owner's approval ofthe Construction D@uments and ofthe latest preliminary
estimate ofConstructicn Cost, shall assist the Owner in awarding and preparing contracts for constsuction.

s 3.{ coilsTRugrpil PHASE SERVTCES

s 3.{.1 GEI{ERAL

$ 3.tl.l.l The Arcfritect shall provide administration ofthe Contracl between the Owner and the Contactc as set
fordt b€low and in AIA Document Al07M-2007, Standard Form of Agreem€nt Between Own€r and Contractor for
a hojec{ of Limited Scope. If the Owner and Contsactor modii} AIA Document Al07-200?, those modifications
shall not affed the Architect's services under this Agreement unless the Owner and the fuchitect amend this
Agreemenl.

alAOocum.nt B1 otE - 2m7. CopvrioH o 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 6nd 2oo7 by ThG Amdic€n tnitit t! of Ar.hitccts. Al dgttta rc..rv.d. tryARi|0{c: Thi!
i::'*T:T:r !11j$1_Y-y:s::?fv!!lt-ly.-.ld ryS'u.n.r r.r-.u6. rrn.uthoriz.d oprodo*on or dbtduir-'oioiiiil -oo",-"nt, 

o..ny Portl'on ol lt m.y ]. ult ln Dv.lr clvll rnd ctlmln.l p.nrlo.., rnd wttt b. pr6.cut d to th. m.xr.r- .rt mp-irti una-or-tli L*. n,"docum.it *ar prodlE{,d bv AIA toftveru rl 13i5.:41 on 09/28/201s urdcr ordc.r io 1tr;,24f]7i3 r ntridr c4iree on osiiaois, 
"iJij -i#-.*o.lJ..r lloln:

(1328768520)

lntt

I

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



$ 3.4.1.2 The Architea shall advise and consult with the Own€, during the Con$ruclion Phase Services. The
Architecl shall have authority to act on behalfof the Owner only to the extent provided in this Ag'eemant. The
Ardlit€{, shall not have contsol oyer, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques,
s€quences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the
Ardrite<t be responsible for the Contractor's failure to pelform the Work in accordance with the requirements ofthe
ConEact D@uments. The Architect shall be responsible fior the Architect's negligent acts or omissims, but shall not
hav€ contlol ove. or charge ofand shall not be responsible for, acls or omissicns ofthe Contractor or ofany other
p€rsons or entities performing portions ofthe Work.

S 3.4.1.3 Subject to Scction 4.2, the Architecl's responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences
with the award ofthe Contact for Constructiq! and terminates on the date the fuchitect issues the final Certificate
for Payment.

s 3.4.2 EVALUATTOI{S OF THE WORK

$ 3,4.2.1 The Archited shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the slage ofconstruction, o as othqwise
required in Section 4.2.1, to become familiar with the progress and quality ofthe portion ofthe Work completed,
and to determine, if the Work observed is being poformed in a manner indicating that the Work, rfien fully
complete4 will be ill accffdance with the Cootract Documents. However, the tuchitect shall not be required to
make exhaustive or cofltinuous on-sile observations to check the quality or quantity ofthe Work. On the basis ofthe
site visits, th€ Archit€ct shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progess and quality ofth€ portion of
the Wuk cornpleted, and report to the Ownq (l ) knoun deviations from the Contract Documents and tom the most
reoent construction schcdule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and deficiencies oboerved in the Work.

$ 3.4.2.2 The Arclitect has the authqity to reject Work that d€s not conform to the Contract Documents and has
the authority to require insp€ction or testing ofthe Work.

$ 3.433 The Ardritect shall interpra and decide matters conc€rning performance undq, and requirements of, the
Conhact Docum€nts on writt€n request ofeither the Owner or Contractq. The Architect's response to such requesls
shall bc made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

$ 3.{.24 Whor making such interpretatims and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful
p€rformsnc€ by both Owner and Contractor, shall not show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of
intetpretatiqls or decisions randered in gmd faith.

$ 3,4.25 The Architect shall renda initial decisions on Claims benleen the Owner and Contraclor as provided in the
Cont-dct D@um€nts.

S 3.'t.3 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYNEI{I TO COITITRACTOR

$ 3.4.3.1 The Architecr shall review and c€rtifr the amounts due the Cootsaclor and shall issue certificales in such
amounts. The Architect's certificatioD for payment shall constitute a representation to the O\,r,ner, based on the
Ardtitect's evaluatist ofthe Work as provided in Section 3.4.2 and on the data comprising the Cortsactor's
Application for Payment, tbal, to the best of the Arcfiitect's knowledge, information and beliefl the Work has
progressed to the point indicsted and that thc quality ofthe Work is in accordancc with the Contract Documents.

$ 3.4.3.2 The issuanc€ of a Certificate for Payment shall nol b€ a rcpres€ntation that the Architect has (l ) made
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspeclions to check the quality or quantity ofthe Work, beyond those re4uired in
Section 4.2.1 (2) reviewed construction means, methods, techniques, sequenc€s or procedures, (3) ascertained how
or for what purpose the Contractq has used morey previously paid on acrount ofthe Confact Sum.

S 3.'I.{SUBilIITALS
$ 3.t1,4.1 The Arclritect shall review and approve or take other appropriale action upon the Contractor's submittals
such as Shop Dmwings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the purpose ofchecking for conformance with
infamatiot given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such subrnittals is not for
the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness ofother information such as dimensions, quantities, and
installation or performance ofequipment or systems, \ tich are the Confi-actor's responsibility. The Architect's
review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions cf,, unless oth€rwl's€ specifically stated by the Architect, of
any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures.

AIA Docunrnt BiIXE - 2007. Copyngr O1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2OO7 by Th. Amcrbsn lnstjtrE of Arch'rGcB. At iight! ...dy.d. WAR]aDac: Thi.AIA'Oocum.ntLProtoctdbyt.S.CoPyrighlL.w.ndlntamdon.lTrrru6.t,n.utiortredEp.oduc{onordbtrib;UonofthbAjA. Docum.nt, o..ny poruon ot lt, m.y li.ult in t.v.rt clyll .nd crknlnd p.n.ltlr., .nd wlll be pr€rcut d to 6c ;Erlmu. .rt r* pon iCi ,rra--rir. i.*. ru.documcnt w36 PtodlE d by AIA !drve.! et '13:5/t rtl on o928r2o15 urdcr Odcr No r/p2it{€zt3_t which .pir- 
";oafuZoi;, 

;;r" -ir".-;!5rc.1r..? rot r: 
(132S76E620)

lnlt

I

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



$ 3,4.t1.2 lfthe Contracl Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or
certificatios by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architecr shall sp€ciry the
apfopriate pcforma.nce and design criteria that sudr s€rvices must salisry. The fuchitect shall review shop
Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional retained by the
Cont-acror that bcar such professional's seal aDd signature *fien submitted to the Architccl. The fuchitect shall be
entitled to rely upon the adequacy, ac.curacy and completencss ofthe servic€s, c€rtifications and approvals
performed or provided by such design professionals.

$ 3.4,t1,3 The Architecl shall review and respond to wrifterr rcquests for information about the Contract Documents.
fie Architect's respms€ to such requcsts shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or othawise
with reasonable prompmess.

s 3.4.scl{41{GES tN IHE WORK
The Ardtitect may aulhorize minor changcs in the Work that are consistent v/ith the intent ofthe Contracl
Documents and do not involve an adjustmcnt in the Contract Sum or an extcnsion ofthe Contract Tim€. Subject to
the provisions ofSection 4.2.2, the fuchitect shall prepare Changc Orders and Consfucticir Change Directives for
the Owner's approval and execution in accordancr with the Contract Documents.

$ 3.1.6 PRO.ECT COilPLmOT{
The Architeci shall conduct inspections to determine the date or dates ofSubstantial Completion and the date of
final complaior; issue C€rtificates ofSubstantial Completion; reccive fiom the Confactcr and fiorward to the
Ovmer, fq the Owner's review and records, wdtten waranties and related documents required by the ConFact
Documents and assembled by the Contractor; and issue a final Cefiificate for Payment based upor a final inspection
indicaling the Work cornplics with the requiremots ofthe Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 'I ADDTTIONAL SERVICES

$ 4.1 Additional Servicrs are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. Such Additional
Services may include programming, budget analysis, financial feasibility studies, site analysis and selection,
envirmmqrtal *udies, civil anginetring, landscape design, telecommunicationVdal4 security, measured &awings
ofexisting conditions coordination of separate contractors or ind€p€ndent consultants, coordination ofconslruction
or project managers, detailed cost estimates, on-site project repres€ntation beyond requirem€nts ofSection 4.2.1,
value analysis" quantity surveys, int€ric architecturdl design, planning oftenant or r€nlal spacEs, inventories of
materials or e4uipment, preparatim ofrecord drawings, commissioning, orvironmentally responsible design beyond
Basic Serviccs, LEEDO Certificatior, fast-hack design scrvices, and any othef services not otherwise included in
this Agreemant
(lnserl a description of erch Additionol Sereice the Archilect sholl provi&, if not lurther described in an exhibit
olt@lgd to this documed.)

$ 4.2 Additional Services may be provided after execution ofthis Agre€ment, without invalidating the Agreement.
Exc€pt for services required due to the fault ofthe Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with
this Sedion 4.2 shall entitle lhe Architect to compensation pursuant to Seclion I L3.

$ {.2.1 The Ardritecr has included in Basic Services fourteen ( I 4) site visits ovcr the duration of the Project during
construclion. The fudritecl shall conduct site visits in excess ofthat amount as an Additional S€rvic€.

$ 4.2.2 The Arctritect shall review and evaluate Contractor's proposals, and ifnecessary, prepare Drawings,
Specifications and other documentation and dat4 and provide any other servic€s made necessary by Change Orders
and Construction Change Directives prepared by the tuchir€ct as an Additimal S€rvic€.

$ tl'23If the services covered by this Agre€ment have not been completed within eighteen (lE) months ofthe date of
this Agreement, through no fault ofthe Archite€l, extension ofthe Architect's services beyond that time shall be
compensated as Additional Services.

ala Docurrnt Bloail - 2o7, copvngtt o 197'4, 1978, 1967, 1997 and 2oo7 byThe Amcricen lnltit b of Archrt ds. All &trta ..!..vad. waRrfiac: Thi!
lll'.^H:::xt :fs}:"_ry^Y:s:c-:ry1-rl -ly._.l1L'g3:d."ll rrorte.. rrnruthorr2ed 

'.prcaucron 
or a*roilion'oir,iiiii -oo.un'"nt, 

o,
lnlt

rny potdon of lt, trEy rnull ln ..v.8 clvll .nd crlmin.l !.n.lth!, .nd wttt be prc..cut d to th. m.rtm".n .rt m po"irtr ,"0-i, tiri i.*JiiJdaumrnt wr. pEduc€d bv alA ioltrval. rl 13:s4:41 on o9/2€rl2015 und6r od6.l'o rtzz(airr_r *rricl 
"reio" 

* os,Eil2oii, 
";" -iltr.*r".Uaar lloiaa:

(132E758620)

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



ARTICLE 5 OUYI{ER'S RESPONSIBILIIIES

$ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Ageemen! the O'.rner shall provide information in a timely manner
rcgarding requirements for and limitations on the hoject, including a written program r+{rich shall set forth the
Owner's objeaives, schedule, constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships, flexibility,
expandability, special equipment, syslems and site requirements. Within l5 days after receipt ofa written request
from the Architect, the Owner shall filmish the requested informalioo as nec€ssary and relevant for the Arclitect to
evaluat€, give notice ofor enforce lien rights.

$ 5.2 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner's budget for the Project, including (l) the budget
for thc Cost ofthe Wcrk as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Ovrner's other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies
relst€d to all ofthese co$s. Ifthe Owner significantly increases or deqeases the Ov,,nq's budget for the Cost ofthe
Worlq the Owna shall notiry the fuchitect. The Owner and the Archite€{ shall thereafler agree to a corresponding
change in the Project's scope and quality.

$ 5.3 The Owna shall fumish suweys to describe physical characterisics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site offie hoj€cl, a rrritten legal description ofthe site, and services ofgeotechnical engineers or other
consultants when the Ardritec{ requests such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the
scop€ ofthe Projecl.

$ 5.tl The Ovmer shsll coordinate the s€rvices ofits own consultants with those services provided by the Architect.
Upon the Architecl's request, dle O$,ner shall firmish copies ofthe scop€ ofservices in the contracts between the
Ovmer and the Own€f,'s consultants. The Owno shallrequire that its consultants maintain professional liability
insurance as appropriate to the services provided.

$ 5.5 The Owner shall ftmish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as

structursl, mechanical, and chqnical tests, tcsts for air and wat6 pollutim, and tests for hazardous materials.

$ 5.6 The Owner shall fumistr all legal, insurance and accounting servic€s, including auditing s*vices that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner's needs and int€rests.

$ 5.7 The Owno shall provide prompt writter notice to the Architect if the O\r,ner becomes aware ofany fault or
def€d in th€ Projecl, including orors, omissions or inconsistsncies in the Arciitect's Instsum€nts of Service.

$ 5.8 The Orvner shall endeayor 10 cornmunicate with the Contractor through the Archilect about mattef,s arising out
of or relating to the Cmtract Dcuments.

$ 5.9 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to comm€ncement ofthe Work and shall
obligate the Ccntraclor to provide the Architecl access to the Work r+.herever it is in preparation or progress.

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK

$ 6.1 For purposes ofthis Agreement, the Cost ofthe Work shall b€ 6e total cost to the Owner to cons,truct all
clements ofthe Proj€cl designed or speEified by the tuchitect and shall include contractors' gsreral conditions costs,

overhead and profit. The CGt ofthe Work does not include the compensation ofthe Archite€l, dle costs ofthe land
rights-of-way, financing, contingencies for changes in the Work or other costs that are the responsibility ofthe
Owner.

$ 6.2 The Ovmer's budget for the Cost ofthe Work is provided in lnitial Informaticn, and may be adjusted
throughout the Projecl as required under Sections 5.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations ofthe O\m€r's budget for the Cost of
the Work, the preliminary estimate ofthe Cost ofthe Work and updated estimates ofthe Cost ofthe Work prepared
by the Architect, represent the Arch itect's judgment as a design professional. It is recogrized, however, that neither
the Archit€sl na the Oun€r has control over the cost oflabor, materials or equipment; the Conractor's methods of
detcrmining bid prices; or comp€titive bidding, marka or negotiating conditions. Acccdingly, the Archirect cannot
and does not warrant or reEesent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Ovmer's budget for the Cost
ofthe Work cr from ally estimate ofthe Cost ofthe Work or evaluation prepared or ageed to by the Architecl.

$ 6.3 In preparing esimates ofthe Cost of work, the Architect shall be permined to include contingencies for
design, bidding and price escalation; to detef,mine what mat€rials, equipm€nt, comporent systems aird types of

docum€ntwe3 produccd bv ArA.drwsr6 ar 13:s4:41 on oe/i8l2or s ;nd.r ord;n'. nzz-iraia_r Jr-t;j'l";;riffifi;,,t:j;i;-;,;j:.lJ..r ]{ot .:
(132E768620)

AIAoocurn nt8104 - 2m7. copvright o 1974, 1978, 19E7, 1 997 and 2oo7 by Thc Amcric€n tnltrub ot Archilccts. Al rtght r..arv.d, w^Rit G:Tht.ala' Docun€rt b prot ctod hv u.s. copyrl0ht L.w.nd lntem.tionrr r.r.o;. un.uthorizld rproducrion or airutfoin oirririiJ -io.utlr"rq 
o,.nv portion of h' m.y .t ult ln .ov.D clvil rnd ctknln.l pcmltL., rnd witt b. pm..cut d to t rr m.!r.r, .rr"m p-oior ura-iiti" i.*lrrri"

lnlL

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



construction are to be included in the Contract Documents, to make reasonable adjushents in the program and
scope ofthe Project and to include in the Contract Documents alternate bids as may be necessary to adjust the
Gtimared Cost of the Work to meet the O\,mer's budget for the Cost of the Work. The Ardritect's estimate of the
Cost offie Work shall be based on currert area, volume or similar conc€ptual estimating techniques. Ifthe Own€r
requ€sts detailed cost estimating s€f,vic€s, the fuchitect shall provide such servic€s as an Additional Service under
Article 4.

$ 6.4 If the bidding has not commenc€d within 90 days after the Architea submits the Construction Documents to
the Owner, through no frult ofthe Architect, the Owner's budget for the Cost ofthe Work shall be adjusled to
refled changes in the genaal level ofprices in the applicable constructicn market.

$ 6,5 Ifat my time the Ardritect's estimate ofthe Cost ofthe Work excceds the Own€r's budget for the Cost ofrhe
Work, the Architea shall make appropriate recommendations to the Own€r to adjust the Projecr's size, quality or
budga for the Cost ofthe Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustmcnts.

$ 6.6 lfthe Ovmer's curent budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion ofthe Construction Documents Phase
Services is qceeded by the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, the Owner shall

,l give writtor app,roval ofan increase in the budget for the Cosr ofthe Work;
.2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating ofthe ftoject within a r€asonable time;
.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5;
.4 in consultatiqr with the Architecl, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce

the CGt of the Work; or
,5 implement any other mutually acceptable altemative.

$ 6.7 lfthe Ovmer choos€s to proc€€d under Section 6.6.4, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall
modiry the Consuctiqr Documents as necessary to comply with the O\ ner's budget for the Co6t ofthe Work at the
conclusion ofthe Conslruction Documents Phase Services, or thc budget as adjusted rmder Section 6.6.1. The
Ardrit€d's modificaticn ofthe Construction Documents shall be the limit ofrhe Arclitect's responsibility under this
Article 6.

ARTICLE 7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

S 7.1 The Ardliteci and the Owner warrant thar in transmitting lnstruments ofServic€, or any othef informatim, the
ransmitting party is the copyright owner ofsuch information or has permission fiom the coplright oEner to
ransmit suclt iaformaticn for its us€ on the Project. If the Owner and Architect intend to tranffrit ln$ruments of
Service or any dher itrformation or documentation in digital ffim, they shall urdeavor to establish necessary
prdocrls governing such tansmissions.

S 7.2 The Architect and lhe Archited's consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners oftheir respective
lnstruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and
other reserved rights, including copyights. Submission q distribution of Instrumcnts of Scrt/ice to me€t official
regulatfry requirem€nts cf, for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication
in defogation ofthe reserved rights ofthe Arciitect and the fuchitect's consultants.

$ 7.3 Upon execution ofthis Agreemen! the Ardlitect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive licsrse to use the
Architect's Instsumots of Servic€ solely and exclusively for purposes ofconstructing using, maintaining, altcring
8nd adding to fie Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, including prompt payment
ofall sums r+'hen due, under this Agreement. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusiye licenses Aom the
Archite€{'s consultalts consisteflt with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to
suthqize the Contraclor, Subcontsaclors, Sub-subcofltraclors, and material or equipment suppliefs, as well as the
Owner's coltsultants and separate contractors, to reprduc€ applicable portims ofthe Insfuments ofservice solely
and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. Tfthe fuchitect rightfully terminates
this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this Section 7.3 slrallierminate.

$ 7.3.1 In the event the Ovrner uses the lnstruments of Service without retaining author ofthe lnslrum€nts of
Service. the Owner releases the Architecl aliclaims and causes ofaction arising
fiom such uses. The Owner, to the extent indemnifo and hold harmless the
Architect and its consultants from all cost ncluding the cost ofdefensg related to claims and causes

ala oocurn nt B10i1E - 2m7. CopmgH o 197a,1976, 1987, 1997 end 2oo7 by Thc Amcricsn tn3tt t! ot A/rhit c€. aI,lghE ,....v.d. waRt{tl|c: ThtaalA' tlocunErt i! prot ct d bv u s cot'v.leht L.w.nd lntem.uonet rrc.g;. unautioazeo oproauctto, 
", 

artldtti oitr. Aii -oo"umrnt, 
o.

'ny 
Poruon ot lt ,ruy r..Uh h t€v.o civll tnd crlmln.l p.n.ltb., .nd wttt uc o.ose"rtJ to n. -i6nm .rr.nr -..rhL ..'rr' ldr uvr sr rq nq lE mlnal panJtLa, and wlll bc plD3€cllttd to th. rnarlmum .xtanl poaalbh undcr tha las. Thi3oocum. w€6 Producld bv alA loflw.n at t3 srt:zt 1 on o9/2v2or 5 under od€r ti ttzz4a s r wlrcn cprar on iriEiadii, iiJi" irid.l"*r"

(1328758520)

lnit

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



ofaction asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and exp€nses arise from the Owner's use of
the Insfurneflts of Service under this Section 7.3. I . The tqms of this Section 7.3. I shall not apply ifthe Owner
rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9.4.

$ 7.4 Except for the lic€nses ganted in this Article 7, no other license or right strall be deemed granted or implied
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license
gEnted herein to alother pany wilhout the prior writtor agreement ofthe Architccl. Any unauthorized use ofthe
ln$rum€nts ofService shall be at the Owner's sole risk and without liability to the tuchitect ard the Architect's
consu ltants.

ARTICLE 8 CI.AI}IS AIiID DISPUTES

s 8.1 GENERAT-

$ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes ofaction, whether in contract, toc or
otherwise, against the olh€I arising out ofor related to this Ageernent in accordaDce with the requirements ofthe
method ofbinding dispute r€solution selected in this Agreement within the period specified by applicable law, but in
any case nol mfre than l0 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. Thc Owner and Architecl
waive all claims and caus€s ofaction not commenced in accordance with this Section t.l.l.

$ 8,1,2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect r €ive all rights against
each other and agains $le contractors, consultants, agents and ernployees ofthe other for darnages, except such
rights Ls they may have to the proceeds ofsuch insurance as set forth in AIA Document Al07M-2007, Standard
Fcm ofAgreemart Baween Owner and Cmtractor for a Project of Limited Scope. The Owner or the Architecr, as

appopriatq *rall require ofthe contracttrs, consultants, ag€nts aDd ernployees ofany ofthem similar waivers in
favor ofthe other parties enum€rated herein.

$ 8.1,3 The Architec-t a[d Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matt€rs in question
arising q ofor relating to ftis Agreement. This mutual \,raiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential
damages due to either party's temination ofthis Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.6.

s 8.2 f,EDtATrOl{

$ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute c oth€r matter in question arising out ofor related to this Agreement shall b€ subject to
mediatim as a conditim precedent to binding dispute resolution. lfsuch matter relates to cr is the subject ofa li€n
arising out ofthe Ardritect's servic€s, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with
the lien notice or filing deadlines prior 1o resolution ofthe matter by mediation a by binding dispute resolution.

S 8.2.2 Mediation, unless he parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration
Association in sccordance \f,ith its Cmstruction tndustry Mediation Prc€dures in effect on the date ofthe
Agre€rnelt. The panies shall $are the mediatG's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the
plac.€ wh€re tte Proj€ct is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upcr. Agreements reached in
mediafion shall be enforc€able as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thqeof.

$ 8.2.3 If the panies do nct resolve a dispute tkough mediation pursuant to this S€ction t.2, lhe mahod of binding
dispute resolution shall be the following:
(Check tle qpropride box. IJ the Owner and Architect do nol selecl o method of bind.ing dispute resolution below,
or do not s1/bsequenlv agree in teriling lo a binding dispule resolution melhod other than litigation the dispute vill
be resolvedin a coun of comrytent juisdiction.)

t I Arbitsation pursuant to Section 8.3 ofthis Agreement

t X ] Litigatim in a court of comp€tent jurisdic{ion

| | o$er (spcifi)

Al locumcnt BlOl - 267. Coprrighi o 1974, 197E, 1987,1997€nd2oo7 by The Amcricen lnstit t oa Archit cE. All .tghb r...rvad. tf|.Rxti|c: Thitala' ooculr|.nl b prot ctod by u,s. copvnght Lrw rnd lnt mrtlon.l rrr.de.. unrufro.tr.d 
'.plodustion 

or airtrrufuoi oioietii 
-oocurnont 

or.ny Podon ot E mry D.ult ln ..v.rt clvll .nd crknin.l p.n ltb., .nd will 1r. pr6.cut d ro th. rn rtmum erbnt pcrll|c umJur; i.*;;;'""t '
d€lmq1t wl3 prodG.d by AIA loltx.r!.t 13:54:41 on o9/28f20'r 5 und.r Odcr No 14224118743_1 rr ch c,otr." * oSasritie, 

";i" rloir* r"*,"u..r l{olr.: 
(132s768620)

lntL

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



s 8.3 ARBTTRATTON

S 8.3.1 Ifthe parlies have s€lected arbitsatim as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agre€ment any
clail! dispute or other matter in queslion arising out ofor relaled to this Agreemert subject to, but not r€solved by,
medirtion shall b€ subject to arbitration \ryhich, unless the parties mutually agre€ otherwise, shall be administered by
the Amedqn Arbitration Ass6iation in accordancc with its Construction lndustry Arbitration Rules in effect on the
date ofthe Agre€ment,

$ 8,3.1.1 A demand for arbitratio shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing ofa reque$ for
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the insitution of legal or equitable proceedings based
on the claim, dispute a other matter in questio would be barred by the applicable statute of limitetions. For statute
oflimitations purposes, rec€ipt ofa wrinen demand for arbitration by the pason q entity adminislering the
srbitration shall constitute the institution oflegal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other
mdtq in question.

$ 8.3.2 The faegoing agresnent to arbitrate and other agre€ments to arbitsate with an additional p€rson cr entity
duly cons€nt€d to by parties to this Ageement shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law in
8lry court hsving jurisdictim thereof

$ E.3.3 The award rord€red by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordanc€
with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof

s E.3.1CO{SOUDAnON OR JOlt{oER

$ 8.3.4,1 Ei0rer party, at its sole disqetion, may consolidate an arbisation conducled und€r this Agreement with any
other arbitralion to rhich it is a parry provided that ( l) the arbitration agreem€nt goveming the other arbitraion
permits consolidation; (2) the arbihations to be consolidated subetantially involve common questions of law or fact;
and (3) the arbifstios ernploy matoially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

$ 8.3.{2 Either party, at its sole dis€retion, may include by joindef, pqsons or €ntities substantially involved in a
common question oflaw or fact whose presence is required if complete reliefis to be accorded in arbitmtion,
providcd that the porty sought to bejoined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an
additional person or €ntity shall not constitute consent to arbitration ofany claim, dispute or other matter in question
nd d€scribed in the rvritten consent,

$ 8.3.{.3 The Owner and Archit€ct grant to any person c entity made a party to an arbitration conducted undq this
Se€tion E.3, wh€th€r byjoinder or consolidation, the same rights ofjoinder and mnsolidation as the Owner and
Ardrite€l und€f, tbis Agreernent.

ARTICLE 9 TERTINATIOI OR SUSPEI{SION

$ 9.1 lf the Omer fails to make psyments to the Architect in accordance with this Agre€m€nt, such failure shall be
mnsidered suhantial nonptrformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect's option, cause for suspension
ofperformanc€ ofs€,rvices under this Agreem€nt. lfthe Architect elects to suspend sq'vic€s, the Ardlitect shall give
seven days' writt€n noticc to the Owner before suspending services. ln the event ofa suspension ofservic€s, the
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damsge caused the Owna berause of such suspensior of
services. Befae resuming services, the Arclitect shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expensos
incurred in d|e iDte[uption and resumption ofthe Architect's servic€s. The Architect's fees for the remaining
services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

$ 9,2 lf the Owna suspends the hojecl, the Architect shall bo compensated for serviccs performed Ffior to notic€ of
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the
interruption and resumption ofthe fuchitecl's services. The Architec't's fees for the remaining savices and the time
schedules $all be equitably adjusted.

$ 9.3 Ifthe Owna suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault ofthe
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreemant by giving not less than seven days' wrinen notice.

aia-Docur|.d Bioar - 2o7. coPyngh o 197,1,1978, 1987, 1997end2oo7 by Th. Amcrien hrt trts d A/rhit.cl. aI rtght ,r...v.d. waRt|trc: Tht!ala' Docum'nt l! PDtoct .l by u.s. coPvright Lrw and lnt m.tlon.l Trod;. un.utioriz.d Eproducuon o, oirtadoi oior. rili -oocr.cnt, 
o,lny po.Uon orlt mty lt.ult ln..v.E ctvtt.nd crtmtn.t Den.ttb.. rnd pfltb.6tu,i-t r^ h. a.'nv PPEon or ll r v 6..u[ h ..v.8 clvll .nd crlmh.lPen ltb., .nd wlll be pto .cut d io th. nurtmun rrtrnt poribi unJ.ioe L*. rm"dGUhGr we3 p'odrc.d by AIA !di.'r at l3:5,. rtl on oezs2ol s under odcr lr-" itiz{e-zi_r *rricl cpi.j o" oifirii]i, iiji" iiriri*r"

(1328768620)

lnlL

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



S 9,4 Either pany may terminate this Agreement upcn not less than seven days' written notic€ should the other party
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms ofthis Agre€ment through no fault ofthe party initiating
the terminatim.

$ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' \rritten notice to the Architect for the
Oy,mer's convenience and without cause.

$ 9.6 In the event oftermination not the fault ofthe Architect, the Architect shall b€ compensated for s€ryices
performed prior to t€f,minatim, togethq with Reimbursable Exfrenses thqr due and all Termination Exp€nses as
defined in Section 9.7.

$ 9.7 Termination Elgenses are in addition to compensatio for the Architect's services and include expenses
dir€ctly atributable to tenninalion for which the Architect is not otherwiss compensated, plus an amount for the
Ardlitecl's anticipated pofit on the value ofthe services not performed by the Architect.

ARTICLE 10 TISCELLAIIEq'S PROVISIONS

$ 10.1 This Agrecment shall be govemed by the law ofthe place where the Project is located, except that ifthe
panies have selected arbitratioo as the method ofbinding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitsatioo Act shall govem
Sectim 8.3.

$ 102 Terms in this Agre€tnent shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A 107 2007, Standard
Ftrm ofAgreem€nt Betweer Owner and Contractor for a Projed of Limited Scope.

$ 10.3 The Owna and Arciit€ct, respeclively, bind themselves, their agcnts, succ€ssors, assigns and legal
r@resarativ€s to this Agreement. Neither the O\ ner llor the Architect shall assign this Ag'eemEnt without the
ilritten csls€nt ofthe oth€r, except that the Owner may assign this Agreemqrt to a lorder providing financing for
the Projecl ifthe lender agrees to assume the Owner's rights and obligations under this Agreement.

$ l0.tl Ifthe Owner requ€sts the Architect to execute c€rtificates or consents, lhe proposed language of such
certificates or consents shdl be submined to the Architect for reyiew at least l4 days prior to the requested dates of
execution. The Archil€ct shall not be required to execute c€rtificates or cons€nts that would require knowledge,
services or responsibilities beyond the scope ofthis Ageem€nt.

$ 10.5 N*hing mntained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relation ship with or a cause of action in favor
ofa third party sgainst eithq the Owner or Architecl.

S 10.6 The Arctlitect shall have no rcponsibility for the discovery, presence, handling removal or disposal ofor
expcure ofpersons lo hazardous msterials or toxic substances in any form at the hoject site.

! 10.7 The Arcnitect shall have the right to include photographic or anistic repres€.ntations ofrhe design ofthe
Projecl among the fudlitecl's promotional and professional matsials. However, the Architect's materials shsll not
include informaticn the Oumer has identified in utiting as confidmtial or Eoprietary.

l0.t tuchitect will work closely with and carefully coordinate its work with the work ofother design professionals
retained by Owl€f, olt the Proje€l.

10.9 tuchited $all obtain and maintain professional liability insurance in the amount ofone million dollars
($1,000,000.00) per claim and two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the aggregate. Ardtitect shall provide Owner
with a certificate ofinsurarce, which certificate shall provide that Architect's insurance may be canceled only upon
30 day notice ro Ouner.

ARTICLE 11 CO PENSATIOI{

$ l1'1 Fu the Architect's Basic Servic€s as described under Article 3, the Ournq shall compensate the Architect as
follows:
qnserl amounl ol, or basis for, compensalion.)

htl .
ot 10

(132870E620)

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



Fixed fee of$t3,622.00 through Construction Documents Phase. Hourly based on the attached Exhibit 'A' not to
exceed of$I7,000.00 for Bidding and Constsuction A&ninisfation.

$ ll2 Fc Additicral Services designared in Section 4.1, dle Owner $all compensate the Ardritect as follows:
qnsert aDrount otr, or basis lor, compensdion lJnecessory, list speciJic semices to which particular nethods of
compe$dion apply.)

Hotrrly per attadred Exhibit 'A'

! 11.3 For Additimal Snvices that may arise during the course ofthe Project, including those under Section 4.2, the
Owner strall compensatc tte fuchitecr as follows:
(nsert anoutl of, or bosisfor, compensation)

Horrly pcr sttedred Exhibit 'A'

$ ll.{ Compensaio fq Additional Services of the Ardlitect's consultants wh€n not included in Section | 1.2 cr
I1.3, $all be thc amormt invoic€d to the Archited plus fifleen pqcent (15 %), q as oth€rwis€ stated below:

! ll,5 Whae mmpensation fc Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or percstage of the Cost of the Worlq
the conpensrior fcr eadr phase of services shall be as follows:

Design Dwelopment Phase
Coostruction Doc.uments
Phase

Con struciicn Phase

Thirty perc€nt
Seventy perc€nt

Percent

30 ./.)

70 't")

%\
,P^- hr-.A

$ 11.6 Whor comp€nsaticn is based on a percentage of ttre Cost ofthe Work and any portions ofthe Projecl are
deleted or oth€rwisc not ccnstructe4 compensation for those portions ofthe Projecl shall be payable to the extent
services are perform€d m thos€ portions, in accordance with the schedule set forth in Sectim 11.5 based on (l) the
lowest bqra fide bid or negotiat€d proposal, a (2) ifno such bid or proposal is received, the most recent estimate of
the Cost ofthe Wo* fq sudr portions ofthe Project. The Architect shall be enlitled to compensation in accordance
with this Agreem€nt for all services performed whether or nc{ the Construction Phase is commenced.

$ I1.7 The hurly billing raes for services of the Arciitect and the Architect's consultants, if any, are set forth
below The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect's and Architect's consultants' normal review
practices.

Qf applicable, qttqch sn qhibit oJ hourly billing rates or inserl lhem belov.)

S€c Ettacled Exhibit 'A'

Employee or Cetegory Rate

s 11.8 COilIPET{SATTON FOR RE|I{BURSABLE EXPENSES

$ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Servicps and include
expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect's consultants directly related to the hojecl, as follows:

.1 TraDspGratidl and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;

.2 l,ong distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project Web
sites, and extranets;

.3 Fees paid for securing approval ofauthorities having jurisdiaion over the Projcct;

.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form dauments;

.5 Postage, handling a.nd delivery;

.5 Exporse ofovertime work requiring higha than regular rates ifauthorized in advancr by the Ownc;

.ny Poruon oI lt may rt ult ln aavan clvll and cdmlnal P.naltba, rnd wlll ba ptt.acut.E| to tha marimum arta.rt
, documcnl wa3 Pro<lucld by AIA .(flry.lE at 13:54:41 on 09r28f2015 urld6 Od€r No.1472,{,t6743_l whEh c)qflg3 oo 0928/2016, end i! |Et tlor G.ata.lJ..r l{oir.: (132S76E620)

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



.7 Renderings, models, mock-ups, prof€ssiooal photography, and pr€sentation mat€rials requesled by
the Ovrnsr;

.8 Exparse ofprofessional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this Projea or the expense of
additional insurance coverage a limits requested by the Owner in excess ofthat nc,rmally carried by
the Architect and the Architect's consultants;

.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;

.10 Site offce expenses; and

.11 Other similar hoject-related expenditures.

$ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Exp€nses the comporsation shall be the expenses incuned by the Architect and the
Arclite€1's cosultants plus ten perc€nt (10 7o) ofthe expenses incurred.
Ref€r to att8ch€d Exhibit

$ fi.g COilPENSATIOI{ FOR USE OF ARCHTTECT',S I{STRUilET{TS OF SERVTCE

Ifthe OwIl€f, t€rminat€s the Architecl for its converience under Section 9.5, or the Archit€ct terminates this
Agreemant under Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay a liccnsing fee as compensation for the Owner's continued use of
the Archited's Insuments ofservice solely for purposes ofcompleting, using and maintaining the Project as

follows:

To B€ hermined

s 11.10 PAYilET{TS rO THE ARCHTIECT

$ 11.,10.1 An initial payment ofzero ($ 00.00 ) shall be made upon execution ofthis Agreemant and is the minimum
paymert under this Agreemat. It shall be qedited to the Owrcr's ac,c-ount in the 6nal invoice.

$ 1,l.102 Unless othrwis€ agreed, payments for sef,vic€s shall be made monthly in proportion to servic€s
perform€d. Paym€nts are due and payable upon presentatio ofthe Architect's invoice. Amounts unpaid thirty (30)
days after the invoice dale shall b€ar interest at the rate entered below, or in the absenc€ ther€of al the legal rat€
prevailing fiom time to time at the principal place ofbusiness ofthe Architect.
(lnserl rale ol monlhb/ ot qnnual inleresl agreed upon.)

12 7o per annum

$ 11.10.3 The Ovma slrall not withhold amounts tom the Architect's cornp€nsation to impose a penalty or
liquidated damages on the Ardrit€61, or to off set sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost ofchanges in
the Work unless the Architect sgre€s or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution

Proc€eding.

$ 11.10.4 Reccds ofReimbursable Ereenses, expenses pstaining to Additional Services, and services performed orr
the basis ofhourly ralcs shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times.

ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERTS AiID CONDTAO{S
Special tems and cdditions $81 modiry this Agreemort are as follows:

I . Construdion Adminislration and Bidding Phases shall be provided on an hourly basis. Hourly rates as identified
in Exhibit 'A' athched.
2. Fixed fee includcs civil angineering and landscape design for site.

ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREE EIT
$ l3.l This Agreement repres€nts the entire and integrated age€m€nt between the Owner and the Ardlitect and
supasedes all pior negotiations, representations or agreernents, either wrinen or oral. This Ageement may be
amcnded mly by writt€n instrumcnt signed by both Owno and tuchirect.

$ 13.2 This Agreement inmrporates the following documents listed below:
(Lisl other d@umenls, d any, including additionol scopes of senice qnd AIA Docunpnt E20l'rw2007, Digitql Data
Prolocol Exhibit, i/conpletel lorming part ofthe Agreencnt.)

Letter dated June 15,2015 and Hourly Rat€s marked Exhibit'A'

.ny poruon of it mty 
''.ult 

ln ..v.rE civll .nd crlmln.l p.n.llL., rnd wlll b. pro.ecut d to thc mutmum oxi.nt
, dcumcnl was Prcd$€d by AIA e.ilwsE at 13 5il:41 on 09/2&2015 uDdet Otfu No 1a724a713_1 silhh c4ir6. on 0928/2016. end |. mt ior rc!€t€[r..r l{ot .: (1328768620)

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



This Agreement €ntered into as ofthe day and year first written above.

(ililER ARCHIT

(Sigrloturc)

(Printed none and litle)

AlADocuir.ntBlOtE-2007.CopyrietnO1974.1978'1987, 1997 and 2007 by ThG Am.rican lnstitrE ot A,Ehilsct. Altdoht ....rv.d. tyr,Rxtilc: Thtrala' Docum. b prot ct d by lJ.S. copyri0hl L.w.nd lntemdion.l Trtni6.. Un.uthort.d Eproducdon or dl.fib;don of Orb AA. Docum.n! or
any Po.oon of lt may re Ult ln rvara clvll and cdmlnal penaltba, and ryllt Da pnoeacutad to tia n|.rtmum axt rt po.albL undar tha lar, Th|s
dcumcol wes produc.d by AlA.ofiwrE st l3 5a:a1 on 09/ZAZO15 und.r OnLr No 1472llrl8743_1 whbh.rqr!3 on O9i2E/mi6, end i! rct br r.!.1..t t.r ror.r: (132s766520)

13
lnlL

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"

jknight
Typewritten Text
Steve Widmyer, Mayor

jknight
Typewritten Text
ATTEST: ` _______________________________Renata McLeod, City Clerk

jknight
Typewritten Text
City of Coeur d'Alene

jknight
Typewritten Text



STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this ____ day of ____________, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
Steve Widmyer and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, 
of the City of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that 
said City of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
  

Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at  
Commission Expires  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this __ day of December, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
__________________________, known to me to be the ________________, of Longwell/Trapp 
Architects, and the person who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and 
acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 
 
  

Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at  
Commission Expires  

 
 
                               

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



LoNcweLL * TRRpp
ARCHITECTS

January 8, 2015
Revised June 15, 2015

City of Coeur d'Alene Fire Department
Attn: Jim Washko, Deputy Fire Chief
320 Foster Avenue
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814

RE: Architectural and Engineering Services for
Coeur d'Alene Fire Station 4
Atlas Road

Dear Sirs,

We understand that the Coeur d'Alene Fire Department and City of Coeur d'Alene is
proposing to construct Fire Station 4 on Atlas Road just north of Hanley Avenue. The
design of the new fire station will be based upon Fire Station 3 completed in 2010. Our
understanding is that we will modifo the fire station 3 plans, prepared by our office, to
reduce the size of Fire Station 4 to approximately 7000 SF. The selected site is the
location of a new city water well, which our office was involved in the master planning
of the site to incorporate the future fire station. We will use the schematic site plan
prepared for the well site as a starting point for the new fire station site development.

Two recently constructed fire stations in our area cost $180/SF and $170/SF respectively
and we have used this information as the basis for the estimated cost of construction for
the new Fire Station 4. As we will be using Fire Station 3 as a starting point we are
deducting the schernatic design phase of the project. Fire Station 3 was constructed 14
years ago and there have been 5 building code revisions since that time that will need to
be incorporated into the plans along with the revisions to the layout.

As requested, we have also deducted the Bidding and construction Administration
sewices, these will be provided on an hourly basis as the project may not be put out for
bid immediately due to funding.

8182 N.Wayne Drive, Suire 204

Hayden, tdaho 83835
f 208.7720sO3 F 20a772.6705

T
10267 N NicktaurDrive

Founrain Hitls, Arizona 85268
r 4a0 837 1422

www gdtarch comResolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"

jknight
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"



The following is our fee proposal to provide architectural and engineering services for the
new Fire Station 4.

Estimated cost ofnew Fire Station 4: 7000 SF @ S175/SF

Architectural and Engineering Fees @9%o
Schernatic Design at 15% will be deducted:

Sub-total
Deduct Construction Administration and Bidding

Constnrction Documents Fixed Fee

Plus reimbursable expenses

Civil Engineering will be provided for a Fixed Fee

Landscape Desigrr will be provided for a Fixed Fee

Total Fixed fee for Construction Documents
Construction Administration and Bidding Hourly not to exceed

Site survey and soils testing to be provided by Owner.

Reimbursable expenses are estimated to be between $4,000 and $6,000.

We look forward to working with the City of Coeur d'Alene Fire Department and the
City of Coeur d'Alene on another fire station project. If you have any questions or need
additional information please contact our office.

Sincerely,

Longrvell * Trapp Architects

$ 1 ,225,000

s I10,250
($ 16.538)

g 93,712
($ 22.050)

s 71,662

7,500
4,500

83,622
17,000

S

s

$
$

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



EXHIBIT A

Hourly Rates are as follows:
Senior Partner 5t25/ht
Partner S115/hr
Licensed Architect I S100/hr
Licensed Architect ll S gO/trr

lnterior DesiBner S 80/hr
lntern Architect I 5 75/hr
lntern Architectll S ZO/t't
CAD Technicianl S OSlnr

CAD Technician ll 5 55/hr
Administration S a8lhr
Consultants 1.10%

ln addition, reimbursable expenses will be billed as follows:

Automobile travel S0.65 per mile

Blueprints (large format copies) 52.00 each

Plots S2.00 each

copies S0.15 each

Color Copies $0.30 each

Resolution No. 15-065 Exhibit "B"



ANNOUNCEMENTS 



OTHER COMMITTEE MINUTES 
(Requiring Council Action) 



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
MINUTES 

November 23, 2015 
4:00 p.m., Library Community Room 

 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT                                                STAFF PRESENT 
Councilmember Woody McEvers     Renata McLeod, Muni. Svcs. Director 
Councilmember Dan Gookin      Jim Washko, Deputy Fire Chief 
Councilmember Kiki Miller     Dennis Grant, Eng. Project Mgr. 
        Mike Gridley, City Attorney 
        Gordon Dobler, Engineering Svcs. Director 
        Jim Hammond, City Administrator 
        Randy Adams, Deputy City Attorney 
             
    
  
 
Item 1  Professional Services Agreement for Mullan Road and Park Drive:  Design, Bid, 
  and Construction Phase Services 
Consent Calendar 
 
Gordon Dobler, Engineering Services Director, presented a request for council approval of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Welch, Comer & Associates, Inc. for Mullan Road and Park Drive:  Design, 
Bid, and Construction Phase Services. 
 
The staff report stated that the recently approved Master Plan for the 4-Corners / BLM area included the 
realignment of Mullan Road (Park Dr. to Northwest Blvd.), construction of additional parking, and the 
Carousel Plaza, as elements of the plan.  These elements were identified and prioritized by council at their 
strategic planning workshop.  Since then, staff has refined the concept for these improvements and 
presented them to the public. 
 
The total Base Bid compensation is for $326,330. This cost will be shared with the City of Coeur d’Alene 
and Ignite CDA.  The cost for reconstruction is estimated to be around $2.0 million.  The City of Coeur 
d’Alene has committed to $400,000 and Ignite CDA has committed to $1.6 million.   This project is 
foundational to the 4-Corners / BLM master plan and must precede many elements of the plan.  It 
provides for additional parking and creates a more inviting, safer, pedestrian friendly connection between 
City Park and Memorial Field.    The proposed timeline is to have the design finished by March of 2016, 
start construction in the spring, and complete construction by summer.  Since this is an additional phase to 
the 4-Corners project, the City would contract with Welch Comer and not have to solicit for the design 
contract. 
 
Mr. Dobler said that since the last Public Works Committee meeting, they have made a few housekeeping 
modifications to the Scope of Services, and took out the “add alternates” because they are not a part of 
this project.  They can always be added in later should money become available for construction.  Mr. 
Dobler also clarified the plans for the Memorial Plaza.  The line item for public meetings was also 
removed from the Scope of Services since it was more of a placeholder.  They would possibly utilize the 
services of the CDA 2030 vision committee to help with any meetings, if they become necessary.   
 
Mr. Dobler explained that they do not believe that an outside project manager is necessary for this project 
since they have a very defined set of requirements and specifications, material controls, dimensions etc. 

Public Works Committee 11/23/15 
 

1 



that are standardized and constitute the bulk of this project.  Their inspectors and in-house project 
managers deal with these kinds of projects and have extensive experience.  They are comfortable moving 
forward without a third party project manager.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked about trees in the parking lot.  Mr. Dobler said that the concept drawing 
that he presented was actually drawn before the council’s recommendation to save as many trees as 
possible.  Since that time, they have been out with the Parks Department and it looks like they can save at 
least half of the trees, which have all been identified.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked about the boundary line of the Urban Renewal District which goes through 
the project and asked if it would be a problem.  Mr. Dobler said that Ignite CDA met last Wednesday and 
talked specifically about the boundary line question and requested that the city itemize and track the costs 
for everything outside of their boundary to make sure that the city’s portion was being applied across the 
board and Ignite CDA wasn’t spending dollars outside of their boundary. 
 
Councilmember Miller thanked Mr. Dobler for his time in going through the steps with her, and thanked 
him for the maps, which she feels are clearer.  She asked how the “Add Alternates” are managed.  Mr. 
Dobler said that in regard to the carousel, the issue isn’t so much finding the funding for design and 
construction, as it is timing.  In regard to the other “Add Alternates” the most likely one would probably 
be the commuter trail and they would have to design the parking lot to accommodate it.  City staff could 
do the paving, so if the money could be cobbled together, it might be possible.  In regard to the other 
“Add Alternates,” Mr. Dobler said that, frankly, he hasn’t really explored those possibilities but would 
certainly make accommodations for lighting and water for a gateway feature, and if something happens 
and the money becomes available, they can come back and amend the consultant’s contract for design and 
initiate a change order.  Mr. Dobler commented that timing is critical because they are moving ahead to 
get the project built by the summer.   
 
Councilmember Miller said that she thinks it could be a “win-win” to use an organization like CDA 2030 
for community outreach services.  She thinks it would be critical to have the engineer present at any 
meetings to answer questions.   
 
Mr. Dobler said that at the Ignite CDA meeting on Wednesday, they approved the $1.6  million in 
funding, and staff will be coming forward with an agreement as soon as they can get it; hopefully by the 
end of the year.     
 
Councilmember Miller said that the presentation at the Ignite CDA board meeting made it very clear that 
the city was funding any of the above-ground work for the gateway feature as well as the carousel plaza.  
Would the Parks Department be working with someone else and amending their budget for that part?  Mr. 
Dobler said that the Parks Department would potentially fund only a portion of what is shown on the 
concept plan around the carousel itself.  They would fund the two planned gazebo shelters that would be 
leased out, because they would get the return on the lease.  If that happens next year, they would have to 
amend their budget.  None of it would happen unless the plaza itself gets built around the carousel.   
 
Councilmember McEvers said that he thought he read that Mullan would be closed in the summer.  Mr. 
Dobler said that the ultimate plan is to close Mullan every summer, potentially from Memorial Day 
through Labor Day, but the dates are not pinned down.  The street would have bollards and no vehicle 
traffic, which would promote pedestrian traffic.   
 
MOTION:   Motion by Miller, seconded by Gookin, to recommend Council approval of Resolution 
No. 15-066, authorizing a Professional Services Agreement with Welch, Comer & Associates, Inc. 
for Mullan Road and Park Drive:  Design, Bid, and Construction Phase Services.  Motion carried.      

Public Works Committee 11/23/15 
 

2 



 
 
Item 2  Request for Destruction of Records 
Consent Calendar 
 
Renata McLeod, Municipal Services Director, presented a request for council approval of the destruction 
of public records.   
 
Ms. McLeod explained in her staff report that the mayor has requested that his office convert to 
“paperless” as much as possible to conserve paper and space.  Correspondence, files created within the 
last 24 months, and files of a historical nature were scanned into the city’s Pigeonhole Document 
Management program.  Minutes from various committees were also scanned and the original hard copies 
were retained.  Pursuant to the Records Retention Manual adopted by the City Council in 2006, the 
attached list of remaining files is being presented to the council for authorization for destruction of such 
records without scanning.  It has been determined that the files are more than 24 months old and have no 
historical value.  Because the useful life of the files has been exhausted, it is necessary to purge them in 
order to maintain storage space for future needs.   
 
Ms. McLeod confirmed that all of the records requested for destruction are from the former mayor’s term.  
Councilmember Gookin said that he had an opportunity to look over the files, and it was interesting.  He 
asked if there was any policy regarding retaining photos.  Ms. McLeod responded that the policies all 
pertain to subject matter, but some pictures of staff and councilmembers are sometimes retained. 
 
Councilmember Miller asked whose job it is to determine if the files are incidental.  Ms. McLeod said that 
the responsibility is party hers, but that the Idaho Code is very specific about what types of documents 
may be destroyed.  The city’s Records Destruction manual, which was adopted by the council, closely 
follows the requirements of the Idaho Code.   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked how the documents are destroyed.  Ms. McLeod said that unless they are 
confidential files, they are recycled.  If they are confidential files, they are shredded.  Because emails are 
retained on the city’s server, printed emails are just copies and can be thrown away without prior council 
approval.  In an effort to get the files approved for destruction in a timely manner, it is easier to just 
submit the file without going through it and throwing away email copies.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Miller, seconded by Gookin, to approve Resolution No. 15-065 authorizing 
the destruction of records from the Mayor’s Office as presented in the staff report.  Motion carried 
 
 
Item 3  Architect Agreement Fire Station 4 
Consent Calendar 
 
Jim Washko, Deputy Fire Chief, presented a request for council approval of the Architectural agreement 
with Longwell/Trapp Architects to re-vamp the Fire Station 3 Building plans to meet the new code 
revisions to be used to build Fire Station 4. 
 
Deputy Chief Washko stated in his staff report that in 2000/2001 Longwell Architects went through the 
RFP process to come the architectural firm to provide blueprints and specifications for Fire Station 3 on 
15th Street, with the idea that the plans would be used for other fire stations for the Fire Department 
future.  According to Idaho Statutes Title 67-2320 and after consultation with the Legal Department, it 
was determined that the city could forgo going through the RFP process to design a New Concept Fire 
Station because this is an associated project.  The financial savings could be as high as $30,000 - $40,000 

Public Works Committee 11/23/15 
 

3 



by using Longwell to re-vamp the plans.  The cost proposed includes the need to meet all applicable 
building codes at this date and time (there have been three code updates).   
 
Deputy Chief Washko said that the architect will have to go through the plans page by page in order to 
assure that the plans meet the standing code now, and produce a new spec book.  He noted that they have 
used the architect on all of their projects, including the training facility, remodel of Station 2, Station 3, 
Admin, and the remodel to Station 1.   
 
Councilmember Miller said that agreement refers to a letter dated June 15th.   Deputy Chief Washko 
explained that delays in getting started on the project resulted in a rewrite of the original letter which was 
dated January 18th.    Councilmember Miller said in the letter the architect is referring to bidding and 
construction administration on an hourly basis, and wondered if this was before the budget was approved.  
Deputy Chief Washko confirmed that it was.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked about the schematic that was done and if they were not billing for it in this 
agreement.  Deputy Chief Washko said that the schematic was provided for assistance to figure out if the 
project was going to fit on the property.  They had some requirements and needs and those have since 
been fixed through some land purchases.   
 
Councilmember Miller said that this is a fairly good-sized project and asked about any discussion 
regarding an outside project manager.  Deputy Chief Washko said that he has been building since 1973, 
and a general contractor from 1980 on, and thinks that he has the experience.  In addition, he was the 
project manager on Station 3, Station 2, Admin, the remodel of Station 1, and he was also the project 
manager on the $2.1 million project for the Northern Lakes Fire District.  His goal is to get a set of plans, 
review the plans, find any potential problems, and get them corrected prior to going to bid and going to 
construction.  In his previous, they have been successful keeping cost overruns to 1 to 2 percent on a bid 
project.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked how this project would affect Deputy Chief Washko’s daily duties if he is 
managing the project.  Deputy Chief Washko responded that he can stay on top of it and that he has a 
good rapport with the contractors and doesn’t need to be on site every day.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked what is the length of time for design on this project.  Deputy Chief Washko 
said that they hope to be finished with the design by the end of January if they can get started within the 
next week or so.  They are hoping to go to bid in February, and then construction in March or April, with 
7 – 8 months for construction time.   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked about the community room.  Deputy Chief Washko said they are going to 
reduce it to about 50 percent of its original size.  It will still be available, but with about a 25 person 
capacity, which would enable them to reduce parking spaces required and helps to fit the project into the 
lot better.   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked if equipment and furniture were all a part of the budget.  Deputy Chief 
Washko said they would put some money aside in the total construction costs that they can manage for 
the furnishings.  They will also bring the ceiling height down on the second floor to reduce the heating 
costs for the building.  They are also going to eliminate the carpet and tile and go with stained and 
polished concrete, which will reduce costs, and reduce wear and tear.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked if Deputy Chief Washko was still a licensed contractor.  Deputy Chief 
Washko responded that he was a licensed contract in Californiat in 1980 and until 1986 when he moved 
to Idaho.  He was still building up until 4 years ago.   

Public Works Committee 11/23/15 
 

4 



 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller, to recommend Council approval of Resolution 
No. 15-065 authorizing an Architectural Agreement with Longwell/Trapp Architects to re-vamp 
the Fire Station 3 Building plans to meet the new code revisions to be used to build Fire Station 4. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Miller asked if there are any problems with the June letter.  Mr. Gridley 
said that, given the relationship between the parties and the discussions that have been had, they can 
amend the letter before it is finally signed.  Deputy Chief Washko will contact the architect tomorrow and 
have them revise the letter and put a new date on it.   
 
Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:47 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Amy C. Ferguson 
Public Works Committee Liaison 

Public Works Committee 11/23/15 
 

5 



   
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE:  November 9, 2015 
FROM:  Tim Martin, Street Superintendent 
SUBJECT: 2015-2016 SNOW PLAN 
 
DECISION POINT:   
Staff requests Council approval of the 2015-2016 Snow Plan. 
 
HISTORY/BACKGROUND: 
Each year, the City has published a snow plan that outlines the policies, priorities 
and operational procedures for the Street Maintenance Department to follow in 
responding to snow emergencies. As in previous years, the proposed (draft) 2015-
2016 Snow Plan summary has been made available at the Council Mail Room as well 
as the Street Maintenance Department offices. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The proposed Snow Plan update is an annual “housekeeping” action that requires 
between 5 to 10 hours of staff time and printing costs of approximately $35.00.  
Citizens and staff mutually benefit from a clear understanding of city snow 
removal policies and responsibilities.  The Council’s snow removal policies are 
recorded in the Snow Plan and distributed in various forms such as pamphlets, 
newspaper articles and made available on the city website. The Snow Plan is the 
city’s primary means of educating the public on city snow removal policies.  
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
The majority of the policies and procedures outlined in the previous years’ Snow 
Plan are still considered relevant and are proposed to be continued out as routine 
operations this year.  Changes proposed for the 2015-2016 snow plan are 
summarized below: 
• Added new and/or extended streets, new subdivisions and cul-de-sacs. 
• Reduced the citywide plowing completion target from 38 hours to 30 hours  

 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff requests Council approval of the 2015-2016 Snow Plan. 



DATE:
FROM:
SUBJEGT:

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
STAFF REPORT

November 23,2015
Dennis J. Grant, Engineering Project Manager
Professional Services Agreement for Mullan Road and Park
Drive: Desiqn, Bid, and Construction Phase Services

nA
DECISION POINT

Staff is requesting the City Council to approve a Professional Services
Agreement with Welch, Comer & Associates, lnc. for Mullan Road and Park
Drive: Design, Bid, and Construction Phase Services.

HISTORY

The recently approved Master Plan for the 4-Corners / BLM area included the re-
alignment of Mullan Road (Park Dr. to Northwest Blvd.), construction of
additional parking, and the Carousel Plaza, as elements of the Plan. These
elements were identified and prioritized by Council at their strategic planning
workshop. Since then, staff has refined the concept for these improvements and
presented them to the public.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The total compensation is $326,330. This cost will be shared with the City of
Coeur d'Alene and lgnite CDA. The cost for reconstruction is estimated to be
around $2.0 million. The City of Coeur d'Alene has committed to $400,000 and
lgnite CDA has committed to 1.6 million.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

This project is foundational to the 4-Corners / BLM master plan. lt must precede
many of the elements of the plan. lt provides for additional parking and creates
a more inviting, safer, pedestrian friendly connection between City Park and
Memorial Field. The proposed timeline is to have the design finished by March
of 2016, start construction in the spring, and complete construction by summer.
Since this is an additional phase to the 4-Corners project, the City would contract
with Welch Comer and not have to solicit for the design contract.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the Professional Services Agreement with Welch,
Comer & Associates, lnc. and authorize the mayor to execute the contract.



c.Ii /
iE

ffi
I il

{
!

:1.-:a I t
^

a h/ 7,I T {
l\

^{r

l-- I

s ttArr
Lrr/ /'n{-

,N ,\

ffi /
,'id\T

\'-,

n
tu

(

,&lll'. ,*,

"ri a
,

h'\
NI I {I I

t
t.
/.n
d

ahirtI a ft
1

/
5 rql

/ , D

\f
,-?:r

{ 0I rI.

n T
\l.r''
I r^ .t.,r$ I l itl*I ,t ?t
"),,*

f*Y"
-.t 

^S'/' ; ,r*+q
T

a ,,?__

II
I ,r)a T5, I

!.+.
\ It

I
n I! t

# \

D
t

I

t I

t a

:= Eii-.-: IEt cl!

iir".rory

reLF"t^tEotyF..FS$Z

6

c /EFWtEW

{ei

,I uli

crrY oF 6EUR tvAt.ENE

MULLAN rcAD
IMPRCA/EMENTS

E

E

s-. - .,, l8
Il



RESOLUTION NO. 15-066 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH WELCH, 
COMER & ASSOCIATES INC., FOR MULLAN ROAD AND PARK DRIVE: DESIGN, BID, 
AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee of the City of Coeur d'Alene has 

recommended that the City of Coeur d'Alene enter into a Professional Services Agreement with 
Welch, Comer and Associates, Inc., for the Mullan Road and Park Drive Design, Bid, and 
Construction Phase Services, pursuant to terms and conditions set forth in said Professional 
Services Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "1" and by reference made a 
part hereof; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to enter into such Professional Services Agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the 
City enter into a Professional Services Agreement for the Mullan Road and Park Drive Design, 
Bid, and Construction Phase Services with Welch, Comer and Associates, Inc. in substantially 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit "1" and incorporated herein by reference with the provision 
that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said 
Professional Services Agreement to the extent the substantive provisions of the agreement 
remain intact. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 

authorized to execute such Professional Services Agreement on behalf of the city. 
 

DATED this 1st day of December, 2015.   
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                             
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

Resolution No. 15-066 1 | P a g e  
    



 
 
      Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
     COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN   Voted _____      
 
     COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS   Voted _____ 
 
     COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER   Voted _____      
 
     COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____      
 
     COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS   Voted _____ 
 
     COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER   Voted _____ 
 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
 

Resolution No. 15-066 2 | P a g e  
    



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

between 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 

and 

WELCH, COMER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

for 

The City of Coeur d’Alene 

Mullan Road and Park Drive:  Design, Bid, and Construction Phase Services 

 
THIS Agreement, made and entered into this 1st day of December, 2015, between the CITY 

OF COEUR D'ALENE, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the state of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and WELCH, COMER & 
ASSOCIATES, INC., an Idaho corporation, with its principal place of business at 350 E. Kathleen 
Avenue, Coeur d’ Alene, Idaho, 83815, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant", 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

Section 1. Definition.  In this agreement: 
 
A. The term "City" means the CITY OF COEUR D ALENE, 710 E. Mullan Avenue, 

Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814. 
 

B. The term "Consultant" means WELCH, COMER & ASSOCIATES, INC., 350 E. 
Kathleen Avenue, Coeur d’Alene, Idaho, 83815. 

 
C. The term "Mayor" means the mayor of the city of Coeur d'Alene or his authorized 

representative. 
 

Section 2. Employment of Consultant.  The City hereby agrees to engage the Consultant 
and the Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set forth. 

 
Section 3. Scope of Services. 

 
A. The Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Services attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “A”. 
 

B. Area Covered: The Consultant shall perform all the necessary services provided 
under this Agreement respecting the tasks set forth in the Scope of Services. 

 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  1 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



Section 4. Personnel. 
 
A. The Consultant represents that it has or will secure at its own expense all personnel 

required to perform its services under this Agreement.  Such personnel shall not be 
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. 

 
B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the Consultant or under 

his direct supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified 
and shall be authorized under state and local law to perform such services. 

 
C. The Consultant agrees to maintain Workmen's Compensation coverage on all 

employees, including employees of subcontractors, during the term of this Agreement 
as required by Idaho Code Section 72-101 through 72-806.  Should the Consultant 
fail to maintain such insurance during the entire term hereof, the Consultant shall 
indemnify the City against any loss resulting to the City from such failure, either by 
way of compensation or additional premium liability.  The Consultant shall furnish to 
the City, prior to commencement of the work, such evidence as the City may require 
guaranteeing contributions which will come due under the Employment Security Law 
including, at the option of the City, a surety bond in an amount sufficient to make 
such payments. 

 
Section 5. Time of Performance.  The services of the Consultant shall commence upon 

execution of this Agreement by the Mayor and shall be completed within Three 
Hundred Sixty five (365) calendar days thereafter.  The period of performance may 
be extended for additional periods only by the mutual written agreement of the 
parties. 

 
Section 6. Compensation. 

 
A. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the City shall pay the Consultant an 

amount not to exceed the total Base Bid sum of Three Hundred Twenty Six 
Thousand Three hundred thirty Dollars and NO/100 ($326,330.00). 

 
B. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City shall not provide any 

additional compensation, payment, use of facilities, service or other thing of value to 
the Consultant in connection with performance of agreement duties.  The parties 
understand and agree that, except as otherwise provided in this Section, 
administrative overhead and other indirect or direct costs the Consultant may incur in 
the performance of its obligations under this Agreement have already been included 
in computation of the Consultant's fee and may not be charged to the City. 

 
Section 7. Method and Time of Payment. The City will pay to the Consultant an 
amount not to exceed the amount set forth in Section 6 which shall constitute the full and 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  2 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



complete compensation for the Consultant's professional services. Monthly progress 
payments must be submitted by the 10th of the month for work done in the previous calendar 
month.  Partial payment shall be made by the end of each calendar month for the work 
completed in the previous calendar month. Final payment shall be made thirty (30) days after 
completion of all work and acceptance by the City Council. 

 
Section 8. Termination of Agreement for Cause.  If, through any cause, the Consultant 
shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner his obligations under this Agreement, or if 
the Consultant shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this 
Agreement, the City shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving 
written notice to the Consultant of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof, 
at least five (5) days before the effective date of such termination.  In that event, all finished 
or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, and reports or other material prepared by the 
Consultant under this agreement shall at the option of the City become its property, and the 
Consultant shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory 
work completed on such documents and materials.  Equitable compensation shall not exceed 
the amount reasonably billed for work actually done and expenses reasonably incurred. 

 
Section 9. Termination for Convenience of City.  The City may terminate this 
Agreement at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Consultant of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination.  In that event, all finished 
or unfinished documents and other materials as described in Section 8 above shall, at the 
option of the City, become its property. 

 
Section 10. Modifications.  The City may, from time to time, require modifications in the 
scope of services of the Consultant to be performed under this Agreement.  The type and 
extent of such services cannot be determined at this time; however, the Consultant agrees to 
do such work as ordered in writing by the City, and the City agrees to compensate the 
Consultant for such work accomplished by written amendment to this Agreement. 

 
Section 11. Equal Employment Opportunity.   

 
A. The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The Consultant 
shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that 
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, 
sex, or national origin.  Such actions shall include, but not be limited to the 
following: employment, upgrading, demotions, or transfers; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoffs or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship; and participation in 
recreational and educational activities.  The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous 
places available for employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided 
setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant will, in 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  3 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The 
Consultant will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts for 
any work covered by this agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon 
each sub consultant, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to 
contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. 

 
B. The Consultant shall keep such records and submit such reports concerning the racial 

and ethnic origin of applicants for employment and employees as the City may 
require. 

 
Section 12. Interest of Members of City and Others.  No officer, member, or employee of 
the City and no member of its governing body, and no other public official of the governing 
body shall participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his personal 
interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he is, directly 
or indirectly, interested or has any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement or the proceeds thereof. 

 
Section 13. Assignability. 

 
A. The Consultant shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer 

any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation) without the prior 
written consent of the City thereto.  Provided, however, that claims for money due or 
to become due to the Consultant from the City under this Agreement may be assigned 
to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such approval.  Notice 
of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to the City. 

 
B. The Consultant shall not delegate duties or otherwise subcontract work or services 

under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the City. 
 

Section 14. Interest of Consultant.  The Consultant covenants that he presently has no 
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any 
manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this 
Agreement.  The Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no 
person having any such interest shall be employed. 

 
Section 15. Findings Confidential.  Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or 
prepared or assembled by the Consultant under this Agreement which the City requests to be 
kept confidential shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the 
Consultant without the prior written approval of the City. 

 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  4 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



Section 16. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Materials.  No material produced, in 
whole or in part, under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in 
any other country.  The City shall have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute 
and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 
Agreement. 

 
Section 17. Audits and Inspection.  This Agreement anticipates an audit by the city of 
Coeur d’Alene, and infrequent or occasional review of Consultant's documents by City staff. 
During normal business hours, there shall be made available for examination all of the 
Consultant's records with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement and will permit 
representatives of the City to examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from such records, 
and to make audits of all contracts, invoiced materials, payrolls, records, or personnel 
conditions of employment, and other data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. 

 
Section 18. Jurisdiction; Choice of Law. Any civil action arising from this Agreement 
shall be brought in the District Court for the First Judicial District of the State of Idaho at 
Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho.  The law of the state of Idaho shall govern the rights 
and obligations of the parties. 

 
Section 19. Non-Waiver.  The failure of the City at any time to enforce a provision of this 
Agreement shall in no way constitute a waiver of the provisions, nor in any way affect the 
validity of this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of the City thereafter to enforce 
each and every protection hereof. 

 
Section 20. Permits, Laws and Taxes.  The Consultant shall acquire and maintain in good 
standing all permits, licenses and other documents necessary to its performance under this 
Agreement.  All actions taken by the Consultant under this Agreement shall comply with all 
applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations.  The Consultant shall pay all taxes 
pertaining to its performance under this Agreement. 

 
Section 21. Relationship of the Parties.  The Consultant shall perform its obligations 
hereunder as an independent contractor of the City.  The City may administer this Agreement 
and monitor the Consultant's compliance with this Agreement but shall not supervise or 
otherwise direct the Consultant except to provide recommendations and to provide approvals 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
Section 22. Integration.  This instrument and all appendices and amendments hereto 
embody the entire agreement of the parties.  There are no promises, terms, conditions, or 
obligations other than those contained herein; and this Agreement shall supersede all 
previous communications, representations or agreements, either oral or written, between the 
parties. 

 
 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  5 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



Section 23. City Held Harmless.   
 

A. The Consultant shall save, hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the City, its officers, 
agents and employees from any liability arising out of the negligent acts, errors, 
omissions, or negligence, including costs and expenses, for or on account of any and 
all legal actions or claims of any character resulting from injuries or damages 
sustained by any person or persons or property arising from Consultant's negligent 
performance of this Agreement.  To this end, Consultant shall maintain Errors and 
Omissions insurance in at least the amounts set forth in Section 25B.  

 
B. The Consultant shall save, hold harmless, and indemnify the City, its officers, agents, 

and employees from and against any and all damages or liability arising out of the 
Consultant's professional, wrongful acts, errors, and omissions, including costs and 
expenses for or on account of any and all legal actions claims of any character 
resulting from injuries or damages sustained by persons or property arising from 
Consultant's professional performance of this Agreement.  To this end, Consultant 
shall maintain general liability insurance in at least the amounts set forth in Section 
25A. 

 
Section 24. Notification.  Any notice under this Agreement may be served upon the 
Consultant or the City by mail at the address provided in Section 1 hereof. 
 
Section 25. Special Conditions.  Standard of Performance and Insurance. 
 
A. Consultant shall maintain general liability insurance naming the City, its entities, and 

its representatives as additional insured’s in the amount of at least $500,000.00 for 
property damage or personal injury, death or loss as a result of any one occurrence or 
accident regardless of the number of persons injured or the number of claimants, it 
being the intention that the minimum limits shall be those provided for under Chapter 
9, Title 6, Section 24 of the Idaho Code.  

   
B. In performance of professional services, the Consultant will use that degree of care 

and skill ordinarily exercised under similar circumstances by members of the 
Consultant's profession.  Should the Consultant or any of the Consultants’ employees 
be found to have been negligent in the performance of professional services from 
which the City sustains damage, the Consultant has obtained Errors and Omission 
Insurance in at least the amount of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00).  The 
Consultant shall maintain, and furnish proof thereof, coverage for a period of two 
years following the completion of the project. 

 
C. The Consultant shall obtain and maintain auto liability insurance in the amount of 

$500,000.00 for the duration of the project. 
 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  6 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



D. Prior to work under this Agreement, the Consultant shall furnish to the City certificates 
of the insurance coverage’s required herein, which certificates must be approved by the 
City Attorney.  Certificates shall provide cancellation notice information that assures at 
least thirty (30) days written notice to the City prior to cancellation of the policy for any 
reason. 

 
Section 26. Non – Discrimination. 
 

During the performance of this contract, the consultant, for itself, its assignees and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “consultant”) agrees as follows: 

 
A. The consultant shall comply with the Regulations relative to non-discrimination in 

federally assisted programs of United States Department of Transportation (USDOT), 
Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, part 21, as they may be amended from time to 
time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this contract. 

 
B. The consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not 

discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and 
retention of sub-consultants, including procurement of materials and leases of 
equipment.  The consultant shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment 
practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the 
Regulations. 

 
C. In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the consultant 

for work to be performed under a sub-contract, including procurement of materials or 
leases of equipment, each potential sub-consultant or supplier shall be notified by the 
consultant of the consultant’s obligations under this contract and the Regulations 
relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin. 

 
D. The consultant shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or 

directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by the 
contracting agency or the appropriate federal agency to be pertinent to ascertain 
compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions.  Where any information 
required of a consultant is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to 
furnish this information, the consultant shall so certify to ITD or the USDOT as 
appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 
E. In the event of the consultant’s non-compliance with the non-discrimination provisions 

of this contract, the contracting agency shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the 
USDOT may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  7 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



 
 • Withholding of payments to the consultant under the contract until the 

consultant complies, and/or; 
 • Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

 
The consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (5) in every sub-
contract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by 
the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto.  The consultant shall take such 
action with respect to any sub-consultant or procurement as the contracting agency or 
USDOT may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for 
non-compliance. 

 
Provided, however, that in the event a consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened 
with, litigation with a sub-consultant or supplier as a result of such direction, the 
consultant may request ITD enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the state 
and, in addition, the consultant may request the USDOT enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of the United States. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement executed the day and year first written above. 
 
 
 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE               WELCH, COMER & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
 
 
 
_______________________________  By        
Steve Widmyer, Mayor    Its       
 
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk    Name/Title 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  8 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this 1st day of December, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve 
Widmyer and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said City 
of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
   

Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at   
Commission Expires   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this __ day of December, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
_____________________ and __________________, known to me to be the ________________ 
and _____________________, of Welch, Comer and Associates, Inc., and the persons who 
executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that such 
corporation executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 
 
   

Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at   
Commission Expires   

 

Resolution No. 15-066   Page  9 of 9 E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  
 



Page 1 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

Scope of Work 
Project Title: Mullan Road and Park Drive: Design, Bid, and CPS 

1. Background Data 

In accordance with the Professional Services Agreement between the City of Coeur d’Alene (OWNER) and 
Welch Comer & Associates, Inc. (ENGINEER) dated _________________ (“Agreement”), OWNER and 
ENGINEER agree as follows: 

1.1. OWNER:  City of Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 

1.2. ENGINEER: Welch, Comer & Associates, Inc. 

2. Specific Project Data 

2.1. TITLE: Mullan Road & Park Drive: Design, Bid, and Construction Phase Services 

2.2. DESCRIPTION: Based on the Conceptual Design (25%) developed by the ENGINEER, the 
OWNER intends to reconstruct Mullan Road between Garden Avenue and Northwest Boulevard.  
Specifically, improvements will include the following: 

A. Stormwater system upgrades, realignment & narrowing, traffic signal modifications, and traffic 
calming of Mullan Road between Garden Avenue and NW Boulevard.  Includes the Memorial 
Plaza, north and south parking lot, Park Drive, and enhanced pedestrian access to City Park.  
Includes general grading irrigation, topsoil, and utility stubs to the future Carousel site.  Also 
includes general site lighting, landscaping, burial of overhead power along Mullan Road. 

3. Services of ENGINEER 

3.1. ENGINEER will perform the services for each service phase identified below after receiving 
authorization to proceed from OWNER for each service phase: 

A. Design Phase: Provide complete Design documents with the following elements: 

i. General Project Management 

 ENGINEER will manage staff, schedule, and budget to maximize the OWNER’s 
chances of a successful project.  Should the project demand, ENGINEER shall 
reallocate resources, where possible, to benefit the project. 

 This scope assumes four meetings with the OWNER.  One meeting will be held with 
the OWNER’s Design Review Team.  Three meetings will be help with the OWNER’s 
engineering staff.  This scope of work assumes that no public meetings are necessary. 

ii. Demolition Plan 

 Provide demolition plan to delineate the limits of removal for items such as asphalt, 
concrete, grass, utility poles, etc. 

 Demolition plan will clearly delineate and show protection for trees to be preserved and 
protected as part of construction. 

iii. Mullan Road & Park Drive 

 Confirm conceptual alignment is consistent with current AASHTO and City standards 
for horizontal/vertical curves, sight distance, width, truck turning radii, and other 
applicable geometric standards. 

 Design speed table/pedestrian crossing to accommodate pedestrians and vehicles. 

 Adjacent concrete sidewalk will be designed along both sides of Mullan Road.  In 
addition, enhanced colored concrete or pavers will be provided as a pedestrian link 
between City Park and the Memorial Pavilion area. 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 2 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

 Conduct geotechnical investigation, laboratory testing, and design to determine 
appropriate roadway section materials and thicknesses for the asphalt sections and 
the concrete pedestrian crossings.  It is assumed 4 core samples will be required.   

 Develop signing & pavement marking plans in accordance with CITY and MUTCD 
standards. 

 Street and pedestrian illumination will be designed in a manner consistent with other 
areas within the City, as there is currently no City “Standard” for lighting.  ENGINEER 
will coordinate with the OWNER on a decorative light and pole type.  ENGINEER will 
provide 4 lighting options and facilitate selection of the preferred light type. 

 Design Stormwater retrofit and modifications consistent with conceptual work and 
previous coordination with City Engineer. 

 Seasonal & removable bollards will be designed for placement in Mullan Road.  The 
bollards will be decorative in nature but large enough to discourage traffic from 
passing through them. 

 The traffic signal at Mullan & NW BLVD will be modified to accommodate lane 
reconfigurations.  It is assumed the existing traffic signal pole at the NW corner will be 
left in place.  The traffic signal will also be reconfigured to notify motorists when Mullan 
Road is open and closed to vehicular traffic.  This notification will likely be triggered by 
the seasonal bollard removal. 

 ENGINEER shall coordinate with Avista, and any other applicable utility, on burial of 
utilities along Mullan Road.   

iv. Parking Lots & Shared-Use Path 

 Provide design for parking lot for approximately 75 vehicles north of Mullan Road, 20 
vehicles south of Mullan Road, adjacent shared-use path, and associated retaining 
wall.   

 The parking lot stalls and access size/spacing, green space/landscaping, stormwater, 
and handicap access will be designed in accordance with OWNER and ADA minimum 
standards. 

 The shared-use path will be 12’ in width and will be designed adjacent to the North 
Parking Lot and tie into the sidewalk and pedestrian ramps at Mullan & NW Boulevard.  
A modular block retaining wall will be provided between the parking lot and shared-use 
path where necessary.  It is assumed the retaining wall will be less than 48 inches high. 

 Illumination will be provided within the parking lot and along the shared-use path.  The 
lights will be decorative in nature and be selected by the OWNER. 

v. Memorial Plaza 

 Based on the approved concept, provide design for all hardscape areas.  Hardscape 
elements will be either concrete, colored concrete, brick pavers, or a combination.  
Design will provide a detailed scoring pattern and material layout.  The hardscape 
areas will match into and access into the existing Memorial Field baseball/softball 
complex. 

 Landscape design will be primarily trees with oversize cast iron grates and some 
shrubs/flowers. Some landscape planters will be designed to double as seating areas.  
These areas will likely be concrete and possibly wood. 

 Decorative illumination will be provided in the plaza.  The light type will match that 
chosen for Mullan Road. 

vi. Carousel Plaza 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 3 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

 Provide minor grading, water, sewer, power and irrigation services into the future 
Carousel site.  No other work will be necessary in this location. 

vii. Additional Stakeholder Coordination: The magnitude of additional stakeholder coordination 
is unknown.  If it is determined that additional outreach is required, the ENGINEER will 
invoice the OWNER on an HOURLY, not-to-exceed basis. 

B. Final Design Documents 

i. Engineer Shall: 

 Prepare final Drawings and Specifications indicating the scope, extent, and character 
of the work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. 

 Advise Owner of any recommended adjustments to the opinion of probable 
Construction Cost. 

 After consultation with Owner, include in the Construction Contract Documents any 
specific protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, 
text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, 
either directly, or through access to a secure Project website. Any such protocols shall 
be applicable to transmittals between and among Owner, Engineer, and Contractor 
during the Construction Phase and Post-Construction Phase, and unless agreed 
otherwise shall supersede any conflicting protocols previously established for 
transmittals between Owner and Engineer. 

 Assist Owner in assembling known reports and drawings of Site conditions, and in 
identifying the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which 
bidders or other prospective contractors may rely. 

 In addition to preparing the final Drawings and Specifications, assemble drafts of other 
Construction Contract Documents based on specific instructions and contract forms, 
text, or content received from Owner. 

 Prepare or assemble draft bidding-related documents, based on the specific bidding 
or procurement-related instructions and forms, text, or content received from Owner. 

 Furnish for review by Owner, its legal counsel, and other advisors, 3 copies of the final 
Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts of other Construction Contract 
Documents, the draft bidding-related documents, and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables, and review them with Owner.  Owner shall submit to Engineer any 
comments regarding the furnished items, and any instructions for revisions. 

 Revise the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts of other Construction 
Contract Documents, the draft bidding-related, and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables in accordance with comments and instructions from the Owner, as 
appropriate, and submit 2 final copies of such documents to Owner. 

ii. Engineer’s services under the Final Design Phase will be considered complete on the date 
when Engineer has delivered to Owner the final Drawings and Specifications, other 
assembled Construction Contract Documents, bidding-related documents, and any other 
Final Design Phase deliverables.  

C. Bid Phase Services 

i. After acceptance by Owner of the final Drawings and Specifications, other Construction 
Contract Documents, bidding-related documents, and the most recent opinion of probable 
Construction Cost as determined in the Final Design Phase, and upon written authorization by 
Owner to proceed, Engineer shall: 

 Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work, assist 
Owner in issuing assembled design, contract, and bidding-related documents to 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 4 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

prospective contractors, and, where applicable, maintain a record of prospective 
contractors to which documents have been issued, attend pre-bid conferences, if any, 
and receive and process contractor deposits or charges for the issued documents. 

 Prepare and issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the issued 
documents. 

 Provide information or assistance needed by Owner in the course of any review of 
proposals or negotiations with prospective contractors. 

 Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of prospective contractors, subconsultants, 
and suppliers. 

 If the issued documents require, the Engineer shall evaluate and determine the 
acceptability of "or equals" and substitute materials and equipment proposed by 
prospective contractors, provided that such proposals are allowed by the bidding-
related documents prior to award of contracts for the Work. 

 Attend the bid opening, prepare bid tabulation sheets to meet Owner’s schedule, and 
assist Owner in evaluating bids or proposals, assembling final contracts for the Work for 
execution by Owner and Contractor, and in issuing notices of award of such contracts. 

 If Owner engages in negotiations with bidders or proposers, assist Owner with respect to 
technical and engineering issues that arise during the negotiations. 

 The Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upon commencement 
of the Construction Phase or upon cessation of negotiations with prospective 
contractors. 

D. Construction Phase Services 

i. Upon successful completion of the Bidding and Negotiating Phase, and upon written 
authorization from Owner, Engineer shall: 

 General Administration of Construction Contract:  Consult with Owner and act as 
Owner’s representative as provided in the Construction Contract.  The extent and 
limitations of the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer shall be as assigned 
in City of Coeur d’Alene Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract 
(2012 Update to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction (ISPWS)), 
prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, or other 
construction general conditions specified in this Agreement. If Owner, or Owner and 
Contractor, modify the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer in the 
Construction Contract, or modify other terms of the Construction Contract having a 
direct bearing on Engineer, then Owner shall compensate Engineer for any related 
increases in the cost to provide Construction Phase services. Engineer shall not be 
required to furnish or perform services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a 
licensed professional. All of Owner’s instructions to Contractor will be issued through 
Engineer, which shall have authority to act on behalf of Owner in dealings with 
Contractor to the extent provided in this Agreement and the Construction Contract 
except as otherwise provided in writing. 

 Resident Project Representative (RPR):  Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to 
assist the Engineer and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor’s work.  
The furnishing of such RPR’s services will not limit, extend, or modify Engineer’s 
responsibilities or authority. 

 Pre-Construction Conference:  Participate in a pre-construction conference prior to 
commencement of Work at the Site. 

 Electronic Transmittal Protocols:  If the Construction Contract Documents do not 
specify protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 5 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, 
either directly, or through access to a secure Project website, then together with 
Owner and Contractor jointly develop such protocols for transmittals between and 
among Owner, Contractor, and Engineer during the Construction Phase and Post-
Construction Phase. 

 Original Documents:  If requested by Owner to do so, maintain and safeguard during 
the Construction Phase at least one original printed record version of the Construction 
Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by 
Engineer and other design professionals in accordance with applicable Laws and 
Regulations.  Throughout the Construction Phase, make such original printed record 
version of the Construction Contract Documents available to Contractor and Owner for 
review. 

 Schedules:  Receive, review, and determine the acceptability of any and all schedules 
that Contractor is required to submit to Engineer, including the Progress Schedule, 
Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

 Construction Staking: Baselines and Benchmarks:  As appropriate, establish baselines, 
benchmarks and offsets for locating the Work which in Consultant’s judgment are 
necessary to enable Contractor to proceed. 

 Visits to Site and Observation of Construction:  In connection with observations of 
Contractor’s Work while it is in progress: 

a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of 
construction, as Engineer deems necessary, to observe as an experienced and 
qualified design professional the progress of Contractor’s executed Work.  Such 
visits and observations by Engineer, and the Resident Project Representative, if 
any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of the Work or 
to involve detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically 
assigned to Engineer in this Agreement and the Construction Contract 
Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and 
similar methods of general observation of the Work based on Engineer’s exercise 
of professional judgment, as assisted by the Resident Project Representative, if 
any.  Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, 
Engineer will determine in general if the Work is proceeding in accordance with 
the Construction Contract Documents, and Engineer shall keep Owner informed 
of the progress of the Work. 

b. The purpose of Engineer’s visits to the Site, and representation by the Resident 
Project Representative, if any, at the Site, will be to enable Engineer to better 
carry out the duties and responsibilities assigned to and undertaken by Engineer 
during the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of Engineer’s 
efforts as an experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for Owner 
a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform in general to 
the Construction Contract Documents and that Contractor has implemented and 
maintained the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a 
functioning whole as indicated in the Construction Contract Documents.  
Engineer shall not, during such visits or as a result of such observations of the 
Work, supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer have 
authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
or procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security or 
safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to any 
Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 6 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

schedules, nor for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and 
Regulations applicable to  furnishing and performing of its work.  Accordingly, 
Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes 
responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to furnish or perform the Work, or any 
portion of the Work, in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents. 

 Defective Work:  Reject Work if, on the basis of Engineer’s observations, Engineer 
believes that such Work is defective under the terms and standards set forth in the 
Construction Contract Documents. Provide recommendations to Owner regarding 
whether Contractor should correct such Work or remove and replace such Work, or 
whether Owner should consider accepting such Work as provided in the Construction 
Contract Documents. 

 Compatibility with Design Concept:  If Engineer has express knowledge that a specific 
part of the Work that is not defective under the terms and standards set forth in the 
Construction Contract Documents is nonetheless not compatible with the design 
concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole, then inform Owner of such 
incompatibility, and provide recommendations for addressing such Work. 

 Clarifications and Interpretations:  Accept from Contractor and Owner submittal of all 
matters in question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract 
Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), 
or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract 
Documents. With reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, 
or decision on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the 
Construction Contract Documents.  

 Non-reviewable Matters:  If a submitted matter in question concerns the Engineer’s 
performance of its duties and obligations, or terms and conditions of the Construction 
Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the 
Work under the Construction Contract Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the 
Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, 
then Engineer will promptly give written notice to Owner and Contractor that Engineer 
will not provide a decision or interpretation. 

  Field Orders:  Subject to any limitations in the Construction Contract Documents, 
Engineer may prepare and issue Field Orders requiring minor changes in the Work. 

 Change Orders and Work Change Directives:  Recommend Change Orders and Work 
Change Directives to Owner, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work 
Change Directives as required. 

 Differing Site Conditions:  Respond to any notice from Contractor of differing site 
conditions, including conditions relating to underground facilities such as utilities, and 
hazardous environmental conditions. Promptly conduct reviews and prepare findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations for Owner’s use. 

 Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals:  Review and approve or take other 
appropriate action with respect to Shop Drawings, Samples,  and other required 
Contractor submittals, but only for conformance with the information given in the 
Construction Contract Documents and compatibility with the design concept of the 
completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Construction Contract 
Documents.  Such reviews and approvals or other action will not extend to means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or to safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto.  Engineer shall meet any Contractor’s 
submittal schedule that Engineer has accepted. 

 Substitutes and “Or-equal”:  Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or 
“or-equal” materials and equipment proposed by Contractor. 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 7 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

 Inspections and Tests: 

a. Receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by 
Laws and Regulations or the Construction Contract Documents.  Engineer’s 
review of such certificates will be for the purpose of determining that the results 
certified indicate compliance with the Construction Contract Documents and will 
not constitute an independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such 
inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the requirements of the Construction 
Contract Documents.  Engineer shall be entitled to rely on the results of such 
inspections and tests. 

b. As deemed reasonably necessary, request that Contractor uncover Work that is 
to be inspected, tested, or approved.  

c. Pursuant to the terms of the Construction Contract, require special inspections or 
testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or 
completed. 

 Change Proposals and Claims:  (a) Review and respond to Change Proposals.  Review 
each duly submitted Change Proposal from Contractor and, within 30 days after 
receipt of the Contractor’s supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, 
approve it in whole, or deny it in part and approve it in part.  Such actions shall be in 
writing, with a copy provided to Owner and Contractor. If the Change Proposal does 
not involve the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the 
acceptability of the Work, or other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will 
notify the parties that the Engineer will not resolve the Change Proposal.  (b) Provide 
information or data to Owner regarding engineering or technical matters pertaining to 
Claims. 

 Applications for Payment:  Based on Engineer’s observations as an experienced and 
qualified design professional and on review of Applications for Payment and 
accompanying supporting documentation: 

a. Determine the amounts that Engineer recommends Contractor be paid. 
Recommend reductions in payment (set-offs) based on the provisions for set-offs 
stated in the Construction Contract. Such recommendations of payment will be in 
writing and will constitute Engineer’s representation to Owner, based on such 
observations and review, that, to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information 
and belief, Contractor’s Work has progressed to the point indicated, the Work is 
generally in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents (subject to an 
evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial 
Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Construction 
Contract Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the 
recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to 
such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s 
responsibility to observe the  Work.  In the case of unit price Work, Engineer’s 
recommendations of payment will include final determinations of quantities and 
classifications of the Work (subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the 
Construction Contract Documents). 

b. By recommending payment, Engineer shall not thereby be deemed to have 
represented that observations made by Engineer to check the quality or quantity 
of Contractor’s Work as it is performed and furnished have been exhaustive, 
extended to every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress, or involved detailed 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 8 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to 
Engineer in this Agreement.  Neither Engineer’s review of Contractor’s Work for 
the purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer’s recommendation of any 
payment including final payment will impose on Engineer responsibility to 
supervise, direct, or control the Work, or for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs 
incident thereto, or Contractor’s compliance with Laws and Regulations 
applicable to Contractor’s furnishing and performing the Work.  It will also not 
impose responsibility on Engineer to make any examination to ascertain how or 
for what purposes Contractor has used the money paid to Contractor by Owner; 
to determine that title to any portion of the Work, including materials or 
equipment, has passed to Owner free and clear of any liens, claims, security 
interests, or encumbrances; or that there may not be other matters at issue 
between Owner and Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid. 

 Contractor’s Completion Documents:  Receive from Contractor, review, and transmit 
to Owner maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, 
certificates or other evidence of insurance required by the Construction Contract 
Documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and Shop Drawings, 
Samples, and other data approved.  Receive from Contractor, review, and transmit to 
Owner the annotated record documents which are to be assembled by Contractor in 
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents to obtain final payment.  The 
extent of Engineer’s review of record documents shall be to check that Contractor has 
submitted all pages. 

 Substantial Completion:  Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor 
considers the entire Work ready for its intended use, in company with Owner and 
Contractor, visit the Site to review the Work and determine the status of completion. 
Follow the procedures in the Construction Contract regarding the preliminary 
certificate of Substantial Completion, punch list of items to be completed, Owner’s 
objections, notice to Contractor, and issuance of a final certificate of Substantial 
Completion.  Assist Owner regarding any remaining engineering or technical matters 
affecting Owner’s use or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion. 

 Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work:  Conduct a final visit to the Project to 
determine if the Work is complete and acceptable so that Engineer may recommend, in 
writing, final payment to Contractor.  Accompanying the recommendation for final 
payment, Engineer shall also provide a notice to Owner and Contractor (“Notice of 
Acceptability of Work”) that the Work is to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, 
information, and belief, and based on the extent of the services provided by Engineer 
under this Agreement. 

 Standards for Certain Construction-Phase Decisions:  Engineer will render decisions 
regarding the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents, and judge the 
acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth in the 
Construction Contract for initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of 
the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality 
to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in 
connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted 
or rendered in good faith. 

 Duration of Construction Phase:  The Construction Phase will commence with the 
execution of the first Construction Contract for the Project or any part thereof and will 
terminate upon written recommendation by Engineer for final payment to Contractors.  
If the Project involves more than one prime contract, then Construction Phase services 
may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts.  Engineer shall 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 9 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

be entitled to an equitable increase in compensation if Construction Phase services 
(including Resident Project Representative services, if any) are required after the 
original date for completion and readiness for final payment of Contractor as set forth 
in the Construction Contract.  The Engineer’s fee is based on an assumed construction 
duration of 65 working. 

4. OWNER’s Responsibilities 

4.1. Owner shall: 

A. Provide Engineer with all criteria and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the Project, 
including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, 
flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations.  

B. Give instructions to Engineer regarding Owner’s procurement of construction services (including 
instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to bidders, and requests for proposals, as 
applicable), Owner’s construction contract practices and requirements, insurance and bonding 
requirements, electronic transmittals during construction, and other information necessary for the 
finalization of Owner’s bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and Construction Contract Documents.  Furnish copies (or give specific 
directions requesting Engineer to use copies already in Engineer’s possession) of all design and 
construction standards, Owner’s standard forms, general conditions, supplementary conditions, text, 
and related documents and content for Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related documents (or 
requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and draft Construction 
Contract Documents, when applicable.  Owner shall have responsibility for the final content of (1) 
such bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement 
documents), and (2) those portions of any Construction Contract other than the design (as set forth 
in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), and other engineering or technical matters; and Owner 
shall seek the advice of Owner’s legal counsel, risk managers, and insurance advisors with respect 
to the drafting and content of such documents. 

C. Furnish to Engineer any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports and data 
relative to previous designs, construction, or investigation at or adjacent to the Site. 

D. Following Engineer’s assessment of initially-available Project information and data and upon 
Engineer’s request, obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available (if necessary through title searches, 
or retention of specialists or consultants) such additional Project-related information and data as is 
reasonably required to enable Engineer to complete its Basic and Additional Services.  Such 
additional information or data would generally include the following: 

i. Property descriptions. 

ii. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions. 

iii. Utility and topographic mapping and surveys. 

iv. Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, and other special surveys or data, including 
establishing relevant reference points. 

v. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site; geotechnical 
reports and investigations; drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or 
subsurface structures at the Site; hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests and inspections of 
samples, materials, and equipment; with appropriate professional interpretation of such 
information or data.  

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 10 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

vi. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations, and impact statements, and other 
relevant environmental, historical, or cultural studies relevant to the Project, the Site, and 
adjacent areas. 

vii. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise identified in this 
Agreement. 

E. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon public and private 
property as required for Engineer to perform services under the Agreement. 

F. Recognizing and acknowledging that Engineer's services and expertise do not include the following 
services, provide, as required for the Project: 

i. Accounting, bond and financial advisory (including, if applicable, “municipal advisor” 
services as described in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act (2010) and the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission), independent cost estimating, and insurance counseling 
services. 

ii. Legal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as Owner requires, Contractor 
raises, or Engineer reasonably requests. 

iii. Such auditing services as Owner requires to ascertain how or for what purpose Contractor 
has used the money paid. 

G. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction to 
approve all phases of the Project designed or specified by Engineer and such reviews, approvals, and 
consents from others as may be necessary for completion of each phase of the Project. 

H. Advise Engineer of the identity and scope of services of any independent consultants employed by 
Owner to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not limited to, cost 
estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructability review. 

I. If Owner designates a construction manager or an individual or entity other than, or in addition to, 
Engineer to represent Owner at the Site, define and set forth as an attachment to this Scope of Work 
the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party and the relation thereof to 
the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer. 

J. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by Engineer, 
then designate a person or entity to have authority and responsibility for coordinating the activities 
among the various prime Contractors, and define and set forth the duties, responsibilities, and 
limitations of authority of such individual or entity and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, 
and authority of Engineer as an attachment to this Scope of Work that is to be mutually agreed upon 
and made a part of this Agreement before such services begin. 

K. Inform Engineer in writing of any specific requirements of safety or security programs that are 
applicable to Engineer, as a visitor to the Site. 

L. Examine all alternative solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications, proposals, and 
other documents presented by Engineer (including obtaining advice of an attorney, risk manager, 
insurance counselor, financial/municipal advisor, and other advisors or consultants as Owner deems 
appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in writing timely decisions pertaining 
thereto. 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



Page 11 of 11 

\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2015\Coeur d'Alene, City of\TO 15-03 Mullan FD & Const\Welch Comer\2015-11-12 Contract_Final.docx 11/12/2015 

M. Inform Engineer regarding any need for assistance in evaluating the possible use of Project Strategies, 
Technologies, and Techniques, as defined in Services of Engineer. 

N. Advise Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested in identifying opportunities for 
enhancing the sustainability of the Project. 

O. Place and pay for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications. 

P. Furnish to Engineer data as to Owner’s anticipated costs for services to be provided by others 
(including, but not limited to, accounting, bond and financial, independent cost estimating, insurance 
counseling, and legal advice) for Owner so that Engineer may assist Owner in collating the various 
cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs. 

Q. Attend and participate in the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, 
construction progress and other job related meetings, and Site visits to determine Substantial 
Completion and readiness of the completed Work for final payment.   

R. Authorize Engineer to provide Additional Services, as required. 

5. Payments to ENGINEER for Services 

5.1. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER as follows: 

A. Lump Sum Services: For Basic Services having a Determined Scope-Lump Sum Method of 
Payment. CLIENT shall pay ENGINEER for the services identified herein the following Lump Sum 
amounts for each phase: 

Task Fee Amount 

Design Phase $143,000 

Bid Phase $7,330 

Construction Phase 
Services 

$127,000 

Construction Staking $49,000 

 

i. The Lump Sum includes appropriate amounts to account for labor, overhead, profit, and 
Reimbursable Expenses.  Subconsultant charges, if any, are included in the above. 

ii. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for ENGINEER’s services will be based upon 
ENGINEER’s estimate of the proportion of the total services actually completed during the 
billing period to the Lump Sum. 

 

 

Resolution No. 15-066 Exhibit "1A"



OTHER BUSINESS 



 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1028 
ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, VACATING A TEMPORARY 
BICYCLE TRAIL EASEMENT IN THE RIVERSTONE PLAT SUBDIVISION, RECORDED IN 
BOOK “I” OF PLATS, PAGE 205E, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, GENERALLY 
DESCRIBED AS A 15.0 FEET WIDE TEMPORARY BICYCLE TRAIL EASEMENT LYING IN 
PART OF SECTION 10 AND 11, TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES 
AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF THIS 
ORDINANCE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 

WHEREAS, after public hearing, the City Council finds it to be in the best interests of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene and the citizens thereof that said easement be vacated; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the following described property, to wit: 
 

That temporary easement fifteen feet (15’) in width for a Bicycle Trail located across Tract 
C, Block 3, and Lot 1, Block 4, and Lots 4, 5, 6 and 7, Block 2 of the Riverstone plat. 
 
Which easement is shown in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
 be and the same is hereby vacated.   
 
 
SECTION 2.  That said vacated easement shall be relinquished, released, revoked and 
abandoned, and the current owners of the property affected by said easement, their heirs and assigns, 
shall be the beneficiary of the vacation. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  That the franchise rights of any lot owners, public utility, or the City of Coeur 
d’Alene shall not be impaired by this vacation, as provided by law. 
 
 
SECTION 4.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
 
 

December 1, 2015      Page 1     V-15-4 



 

SECTION 5.   After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the 
provisions of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of 
Coeur d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 1st day of December, 2015. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

December 1, 2015      Page 2     V-15-4 



 

SUMMARY OF COEUR D'ALENE ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
V-15-4, TEMPORARY BICYCLE TRAIL EASEMENT VACATION 

 
 The City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho hereby gives notice of the adoption of Coeur d'Alene 
Ordinance No. ____, vacating a temporary bicycle trail easement in the Riverstone plat. 
 
 Such easement is more particularly described as follows: 
 

That temporary easement fifteen feet (15’) in width for a Bicycle Trail located across Tract 
C, Block 3, and Lot 1, Block 4, and Lots 4, 5, 6 and 7, Block 2 of the Riverstone plat. 
 
Which easement is shown in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
 The ordinance further provides that the ordinance shall be effective upon publication of 
this summary.  The full text of the summarized Ordinance No. ____ is available at Coeur d'Alene 
City Hall, 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814 in the office of the City Clerk. 
 
 
 
             
       Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 1, 2015      Page 1     V-15-4 



 

 
 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
      I, Mike Gridley, am a City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I have 
examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ____, V-15-4, vacating a 
fifteen foot (15’) wide temporary bicycle trail easement in the Riverstone Plat and find it to be a 
true and complete summary of said ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the 
context thereof.  
 
     DATED this 1st day of December, 2015. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Mike Gridley, City Attorney 
 
 

December 1, 2015      Page 2     V-15-4 



Y
(

N

Yg
oJ
& J

IttII
lttii

,il!ii
niiiiiiid !!!rl5:
I gq o . r o <

E

p
I
g

t

i

z
Y
o
0,

--{
I

ul
I

I

I
I
I
I

I

i
I
I
I
I

I

I
I

1t

| 
-,-

t

iA

l

1
I

I
I
I
i
8

i
I
j

t-l

ll
dl
El

6l
EI
?l
>t

I

o
I
F
I
o

o
EJ
(
t

o
z
EI

\l

I
I

t

a

I

!

t

I

Yhrot:o"
J
o

I

I

f,

--<--ca--'

!
I

I

o

r-LY9' 

- 
-

l

1

o

.al

'.i*=

e

o

BEES E

o

c
:
e.

il

o

l
.a/..r--

-_)

'3

N

Y
(.)

J
o

e

o
J5
$-'
-9
;

t]]
o
(r)
.(
d)
o-

H
{

6

LJ
z
o
F.
a
v
LJ

zt

Blhatll.r ----- r 
-- 

-1

lr'vcr+

I

o

December 1, 2015 CB 15-1028 V-15-4

dennisg
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"

dennisg
Typewritten Text


	Agenda
	Minutes 111715
	Setting Memo A-4-15
	Consent Reso. 15-065
	SR - Records Destruction
	SR - Fire Station 4
	PWMinutes112315
	SR Snow Plan
	SRMullan Road
	CB 15-1028 - V-15-4 Vacation of bicycle trail easement



